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dear shareholder:

For the past two years we have been focusing the Company on its
core competencies of bone science and technology, with the goal of
fransitioning the Company intfo a leadership position in ostecbiclogics
through innovative research and new products.

Osteotech has been known as a global leader in the processing of
human bone and fissue for fransplantation. We believe by focusing on
our core competency, bone science, we will deliver key technologies
to the market, which willimprove bone healing and patient care.

Our goal is fo set the standard for osteobiologics, as we did when we
innovated deminerdlized bone matrix technology in the 1990s, Our
experience and depth of knowledge in bone science and technolo-
gy are the foundation upon which our five research and new product
development imperatives are based. These imperatives are osteocon-
ductivity, osteoinductivity, osteoconformity, structural support, and
remodeling. Our research activities, new product development and
technology collaborations will all be based on these five imperatives.

Our keys to success as an osteobiologic innovator will come from tech-
nologies and advances in existing technological platforms as well as the
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use of new materials such as synthetics and non-human components.
We will enhance our product portfolio through these efforts as well as
develop consistent and sustainable sources for the gift of donation.

Our global donor strategy is based on the belief that the gift of donc-
fion, in the absence of any consent restrictions, should be first used to
satisfy local patient needs, but then if available, satisfy patient care
needs around the world. As a company, our ethical obligation and
social responsibility for the giff of donation is to use our technology to
bring these products to the global health care communi-

ty. We follow the highest standard of quality o

ensure safety for patients, healthcare workers

and our employees. With this in mind, we
are taking steps to bridge the regula-
fory gap between countries so that
our fechnology and the resulfing
products derived from the gift

of donation may benefit
everyone. This will increase
availability and maximize

the gift by eliminating waste

and fime sensitive expiration.

Our global donor procure-
ment strategy and research
activities will be managed with
complete adherence and respect
to the individual donor’s wishes.

Corporate Campus
51 fames Way,

An area of growth that is of strategic impor- Earonrown, New Jersey
tance to Osteotech involves soft tissue. Osteotech

began direct distribution of soft and traditional allograft in

the United States on a limited basis in 2002, and on a broader product
basis in 2004. The market demand for soft tissue remains high but tissue
availability is constrained by donor age, supply and the limitations of
useable soft tissue per donor. Our strategy is to remain a niche suppli-
er of soft tissue in the United States, to support our key customers and
to have the capability to bundle soft tissue with our core product lines.
Our business and revenue focus for growth in soft tissue products will be
in the international markets, where we have the donor sources to sup-
port this strategy.

The long-term global demand for soft fissue will continue to grow as
both disposable income and sports activities increase in India, China
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and elsewhere. Osteotech will continue to evaluate new fechnologies
and innovative products o satisfy this growing market demand.

Grafton® DBM and Graffech® Bio-lmplants are the core of our revenue
base. These products will be the focus of our new technologies and
product development. Building on the name brand recognition and
clinical success of our established Grafton® DBM line, we will be
extending the brand with a line of enhanced Grafton® DBM products
in 2008. The new line, with increased osfecinductivity and osteocon-
ductivity potential known 1o promote bone growth, will perform at an
even higher level than the current Grafton® DBM. We believe
enhanced DBM will become the cost effective alternative to commer-
cially available recombinant bone morphogenic proteins (BMP).

Our existing line of Graftech® Bio-Implants serve as the basis for many
of our new fechnologically enhanced spinal implants. Our new prod-
uct lines infroduced in 2005, GraftCage™ PEEK implants and Xpanse™
Bone Inserts, are already gaining widespread appeal. These new lines of
products will focus on osteoconformity and structural support, offering
surgeons more opportunities for success than ever before.

changing business model:

With our new product portfolio and emerging new technologies, we
have begun our journey to bring the Company to profitability. Wé have
made fhe sfrafegic decision fo change the operating business model
from an OEM tissue processor to a technology and distribution business
model in osteobiologics. In the new business model, we currently have
strength in technology and our focus for the next two years is to build
the distribution channel effectiveness to support the new technologies
and products being developed.

The technology component of our new business model requires that
we modify our donor procurement strategy. Cortical shafts will
become the main focus of our donor needs. Our fechnology and core
competencies are in converting cortical bone tissue into innovative
products. We believe this differentfiates Osteotech from our competitors.

distribution channel:

Osteotech made considerable progress during 2005 in completing its
field distribution structural changes as established in late 2004. These
changes focused on the implementation of direct field management
positions and on fransitioning agents in lower performing markets. The
goal of the field structural changes is o support the continued growth
of revenue during 2006 on current Osteotech product lines and to sup-
port the effective introduction of key new 510(k) approved products
such as the Xpanse™ Bone Insert and Graffcage™ PEEK Spacer lines.
Another key domestic field sales focus during 2005, that will continue



during 2006, is that of securing and successfully implementing our
Group Purchasing Organization (GPO) agreement strategy. Within this
strategy, Osteotech has and will continue 1o secure high-value agree-
ments with key, highly committed GPO organizations to facilitate share
gain with current Osteotech product lines and to provide an expand-
ed customer base for new product technologies.

The first phase of Osteotech’s international expansion, in which we
have piloted sales and market positions in the three main regional
markets outside the United States - Europe and the Middle East, Asia
Pacific, and Latin America - is drawing to a close. We are now start-
ing to expand and strengthen our sales organizations in each areq,
bringing medical education and experienced sales management 1o
further develop each market, and upgrading our distribution partners
where appropriafe. In addition to expanding the market acceptance
and potential for our products, this program will also strengthen our
position vis-a-vis our competition.,

We have to date focused our infernational efforts on developing the
markets for Graffon® DBM and standard allografts. Our international
channel effectiveness initiative for the next two years is to complement
these core products with the remainder of the Osteotech product
lines, including Graftech® Bio-Implants, GraffCage™ and Xpanse™ Bone
Inserts, contfinuing our strategy of taking products proven in the
domestic arena into international markets.

Osteotech’s international busi-
ness has been a source of rev-
enue and profit growth, and
we plan to accelerate and
capitalize on our clinical
strength in the international
markets,
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Letters wrirten to donor
Jamilies by recipients
through the Pathways
Thank You Letter Pragram.




“It is technological advances such as these, created

|

General Population Risk

Reduction right here at our own corporate campus, that reinforce
our effectiveness at reducing the risk to our graft recipi-
ents, thus making the gift of donation entrusted to Osteotech
even more precious.”

social responsibility/public safety:

Final Packaging Our management feels an obligation to inform our shareholders and
the fissue banking community what our technology and processes
have achieved, not only from an efficacious standpoint, but a view of
public safety, as well. Our long-standing and distinguished history of
safety and continued focus on research and development speaks to
our continuing commitment.

Since 1987, Osteotech has processed
« Over 50,000 donors
* 3,500,000 allograft units
» 7,000,000cc’s Grafton® DBM (700,000 procedures)
+ 15,000,000cc’s DBM Powder

In addition to the roll-out of new products, our specialized team of sci-
entists have developed such validated processes as viral inactivation
and the patented D-Min® process which work in concert with our strict
procedures to ensure that each and every graft processed carries with
it the high quality and record of safety that has come to be expected
from Osteotech.

employees:

Within all levels of our organization it is evident that those individuals
who have chosen to work at Osteotech are a unigue blend of consci-
entious humanitarians, In the past year, our nearly three hundred
employees excelled not only at performing assigned tasks in their lcbs
and offices, but also in meeting the needs of others on a global scale.
They gave tens of thousands of dollars for the Tsunami Relief Effort
aimed at helping those in Asia who suffered from this cataclysmic
event, and then increased their generosity when the call went out to
help those impacted by Hurricane Katrina in the Gulf Coast region of
the United States. Our employees collected toys and holiday gifts for
underprivileged children and canned food and toiletries for the needy
of Monmouth and Ocean counties here in New Jersey, But it wasn't just
dollars that our employees parted with. They gave of their time, as well,
volunteering individually and in groups to lend a hand at local chari-
ties, churches and relief agencies. Many of them used their time to
walk, run and otherwise raise pledges of financial support to research
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for breast cancer, arthritis and diabetes, to name a few.

In adaition to ali of this, Ostectech employees continued to find time
10 be some of the best advocates for orgon and tissue donation
awareness. They have been sponsors of the United Network for Organ
Sharing's (UNQS) National Donor Memorial. Through the efforts of our
employees, Osteotech was recognized as a "Workplace Partner for
Life" by the United Sates Department of Heaith and Human Services
Gift of Life Donation Initiative for our company's "dedication to creat-
ing a donation friendly America." Through the Pathways Thank You
Letter Program begun by Osteotech several years ago, our employees
have had the opportunity to learn directly from recipients how the gifts
of donation have made a difference in the lives of so many. By procla-
mation of President Bush, each April is "National Donate Life Month" in
the United States. In April our employees make a special effort to make
sure others know the benefits of donation, foo. They wear pins, renew
requests for individuals to become donors, watch informational videos
on donation, and parficipate in the "WALK the WALK" fund-raising
effort, benefiting the Kidney & Urology Foundation of America. Their
participation has earned them the status of "Shining Star Conftributor.”

Ostectech is honored to have such dedicated and selfless individuals
working for it. During 2005 we matched our employees' contributions
to many of the above-mentioned worthy causes. In 2006 | look proud-
ly forward to participating with them as they continue to lend their indi-
vidua!l and coliective support to efforts and causes which can make
our world a hedalthier, safer and happier place to live.

conclusion:

Utilizing the five imperatives of osteoconductivity, osteoinductivity,
osteoconformity, structural support, and remodeling os cur basis of
research and product development, we will embrace change as we
move forward with our goals and objectives and educate the medical
communities in which we operate with respect to bone science and
healing. In 2006 we look forward to achieving our stated godls in new
technologies that will once again define Osteotech as an innovator.
Qur ethical and moral stand in the use of the giff of donation will
remain steadfast.

Qur destiny will not be defined by our passion, but by our purpose.

Thank you.

/"l/ht' ]ﬁ/——-—

Sam Owusu-Akya
Chief Executive Officer
May 9, 2006
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Joining
Lives

Enhancing
Life

£

donation
to innovation
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Osteotech understands that, in many ways, the value of donated tissue
transcends its physical properties. Therefore, honoring the gift of dona-
tion is the inspiration and the driving force behind our work every day.

In 2005, Osteotech supported congoing efforts to highlight the gift of fis-
sue donation and educate the public on ways that gift enhances the
lives of thousands each year. Each April, National Donate Life Month,
and throughout the year, Osteotech takes time to focus on the gift of
donated tissue that makes its work possible. By honoring the families of
donors, and sharing the touching stories of recipients with our staff,
Osteotech is reminded of how precious the gift is, and the integral role
our employees play in making that transition possible.

In addition, Osteofech continued its dedication to donation through
fund raising to support regional public education efforts.
Contributions were also made to the ongoing development of the
National Donor Memorial in Richmond, Virginia, which pays homage to
America’s organ and fissue donors. Osteotech brings this message
home with it's own Donor Memorial Garden at it's corporate head-
quarters, a concept developed by employees and dedicated in April
2003. The garden which graces the front lawn stands as a reminder
and inspiration for all who visit.
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I want to leave you with this thought, there hasn't been a day that has gone by that I haven't
thought abour you and remembered the pain of losing someone you love. I hope very
sincerely that in some measure you find comfort in this letter and that you realize what a
difference in my life you and your loved ones generosity has made. [ also hope that this helps

you find some measure of peace in this decision.”

Terrie

— from a lerter to her donor’s family,
November 2005,

reprinted with permission

Osteotech is leading the way in the tissue
banking community with its support of the
Pathways Thank You Letfter Program, a ground-
breaking effort to offer tissue recipients the opportu-
nity o write lefters of gratitude to the families of their
donors. This valuable program experienced fremendous
growth in 2005, and is laying the foundation for enhanced
relationships with the fissue procurement community and our cus- than the gift of donased
tomers.

There is nothing

more precious

musculoskeletal tissue, so that others
And finally, it is Osteotech’s commitment to innovative excellence that
seeks out fechnological advancements to make the gift of donation may have an improved quality of life.
touch the lives of so many more recipients. Through research and
development as well as constantly re-exarnining it's distribution model,
Osteotech prides itself in making sure that the right graft is available for
the right patient at the right time.

Osteotech’s mission with respect to the gift of donation remains the
same as it has always been - 1o remain dedicated to the mission to
develop and apply the very best in technological innovation with
respect for its infended purpose, which is fo restore the health and
function of those who receive it
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Osteotech currently competes within the Deminerdlized Bone Matrix
(BBM), Structural Spinal Allograft, and Base Tissue Segments of the over-
alt Bone Graft Substitute Market. Major United States domestic com-
petitors within these markets include DBM/synthetic bone void filler,
commercially available bone morphogenic proteins and other growth
factors, machined structural allograft, and base tissue products, and
autografts (the use of a patient’s own bone).

Infernational markets vary on a country-to-country basis. Autograft
continues to be used in the majority of orthopaedic and neurosurgical
bone graft procedures. Unprocessed allografts and synthetic bone
substitutes are widely used to complement autograft when necessary
in most markets. Many European governments have established and
subsidized local tissue banks, which serve their local markets preferen-
fially with low fechnology and low price tissue grafts. In Asia and Latin
America, the need for bone grafts to complement autograft is serv-
iced primarily through importation. Overall, the markets outside the
United States are currently characterized by price sensitivity and have
not yet been developed to be receptive to higher technology grafts
that are safer and more effective. Though currently still under-devel-
oped, International markets represent a major opportunity, with bone
grafting procedures in Europe alone estimated at more than 500,000




per year. The bone graft substitute market is an extension of the gener-
al orthopaedic surgery market, as bone grafts are used adjunctively in
a broad range of reconstructive orthopaedic surgical procedures
such as the repair of fractures and skeletal defects, spinal and joint
arthrodesis, and revision arthroplasties. These procedures are per-
formed by virtually all orthopaedic sub-specialties, neurosurgeons,
some plastic surgeons and certain other surgical speciaities. Nearly
70% of all Bone Graft Substitute products sold in the United States are
used for spinal procedures. In most International markets, however, revi-
sion arthroplasty and frauma repair procedures togeth-

er account for the majority of bone graft proce-

dures. In both the United States and in

International markets, dental and other

oral maxillofacial procedures are not
the dominant segment of the
bone graft market, but are
instead considered to consti-

tute a secondary market.

We believe that an opportuni-

Ty exists to build a significant,
defensible and profitable bone
and soft fissue grafts business inter-
nationally using marketing and product
strategies.

We believe that the demand for human tissue in the United

States will continue fo grow and is becoming more accepted as either
an augment, or a surgical alfernative, to autograft bone. Autograft
generally requires a second surgical procedure o harvest bone from
the patient’s hip and, therefore, exposes the patient fo increased risks
associated with blood loss, infection and chronic pain. We believe
increased use of dllograft bone will continue as more clinical data
becomes available.

We have expanded the applications of allograft bone fissues, due in
part to our proprietary fissue processing tfechnology, which includes
Grafton® DBM, a proprietary form of allograft bone tissue. The deminer-
dlization process used in Graffton® DBM removes most of the minerdls,
thus exposing the proteins that promote bone growth (ostecinduction) and
creating a latticework for new bone (osteoconduction). With the vary-

,ﬂ[‘p OSTEOTECH:
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Pioneering the field of

tissue processing, Osteotech was

the first to use aseptic
processing technologies and

methods on an exclusive basis.
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ing textural and handling characteristics of its forms, Grafton® DBM can
be used in virtually all non-weight-bearing bone graft procedures.
Graffon® DBM has a validated viral inactivation process for HIV. hepa-
fitis B and C, cytomeglia and polio. Grafton® DBM is produced in mul-
tiple forms and is packaged in sterile, single patient delivery systems.

Given its ostecinductive and osteoconductive properties, Grafton®
DBM has a distinct advantage over synthetic bone void fillers, all of
which are exclusively osteoconductive. Grafton® DBM’s advantages
over synthetic groffing materials in the market for non-weight-bearing
applications include:

* superior handling and performance gualities, including
providing a matrix for bone to grow into and inducing
bone to grow; and

* the suitability of Grafton® DBM for all non-weight-bear-
ing bone graft procedures versus the limited applica-
tions of competitive synthetic bone void fillers,

In recent years, Grafton® DBM has faced increasing competitive pres-
sures, which we expect will continue in the future, as more companies
have developed DBM products similar to Grafton® DBM. Most of these
competitors have, in turn, partnered with large orthopoaedic compa-
nies to market their products. Many of these companies have
research and development, marketing and other resources that are
significantly grecater than ours. They also offer a full line of orthopaedic-
related supplies and materials, which could give them a competitive
advantage over us since they can offer surgeons a more complete
line of products than we can.

Grafton® DBM primarily competes with DBM products including: DBXe,
processed by Musculoskeletal Transplant Foundation and distributed
by Synthes Spine; DynaGraft® Il, OrthoBlast® Il and Accell®, manufac-
tured and distributed by IsoTis OrthoBiologics, Osteofil®, processed by
Regeneration Technologies, Inc. ("RTI") and distributed by Medtronic
Sofamor Danek; AlloMatrix®, manufactured and distributed by Wright
Medical Technologies, Inc.; and InterGro®, processed and distributed
by a subsidiary of Biomet, Inc.

In the United States, the FDA is now regulating all demineraiized bone
matrices mixed with a carrier material as o medical device and requir-
ing all processors to file a 510(k). All of our Grafton® DBM forms and
Grafton Plus® DBM Paste have been cleared by the FDA for more indi-
cations than any other DBM currently avcilable on the market.
Grafton® DBM and Grafton Plus® DBM Paste have been cleared as a
bone void filler, bone graft extender and bone graft substitute. Quiside
the United States, Grafton® is regulated on a country-by-country basis,
with different countries applying different regulatory schemes and
requirements.




To stay competitive in the DBM market, we have expanded our line of
Graffon® DBM to offer the surgeon the ability to expand the type of
procedures DBM grafting materials can be used in. We have entered
into agreements to process two private Iabel DBMs to expand into
segments of the orthopaedic market that are not a focus of our sales
force. We have also expanded our Graftech® Bio-Implant fine with
which Graffon® DBM is used. When taken fogether, we are now able
to provide the spinal surgeon with the full range of tfissue products
needed to achieve the cutcomes the surgeon is seeking for the
patient. We also continue to differentiate Grafton® DBM from its com-
petitors by funding clinical research to prove that the Grafton® DBM
product is superior.

Notwithstanding the increasing competition, we believe Graffon® DBM
has significant opportunities for growth. Currently, Grafton® DBM sales
are primarily domestic. We believe that Grafton® DBM was used in only
a small portion of the total bone graft procedures performed in the
United States during 2005.  We estimate the potential non-domestic
bone graft market to be at least as large as that of the United States
market, The European market, in particular, provides us with an oppor-
tunity in an area where we already have a sales presence. We cur-
rently market Grafton® DBM in 20 countries, including the United States.

In the United States, it is estimated that 500,000 spinal fusion proce-
dures are performed annually with over half using interbody fusion
products. Interbody products are described as spacers or cages, man-
ufactured from allograft bone, polymers or metais. These products are
weight-bearing and act as structural support at the fusion site to aid in
bone healing.

Osteotech is building on its foundation of bone science to redefine the
interbody fusion market by building “bio-active” technology into inter-
body fusion devices. Our Graftech® Bio-Implants are machined allo-
graft bone treated with our proprietary OsteocActive™ surface deminer-
adlized technology to allow faster incorporation of the patient’s own
bone, thereby ciding the process of spinal fusion. Graftech® Bio-
Implants are a complete line of interbody fusion products spanning
cervical and lumbar applications.

For bone grafting procedures which require weight-bearing tissue, allo-
graft bone tissue is still the only alternative to autograft bone fissue. In
this segment, we process both our Traditional Allograft bone ftissue
forms and Graftech® Bio-Implants. We plan to continue to differentiate
our Base Allograft Bone Tissue Segment operations from those of other
cllograft bone tissue processors through confinued technological
advances. Qur Graftfech® Bio-Implants face significant competition
from bio-implants processed by other tissue banks and processors such
as MTE RTl and LifeNet and are marketed by companies such as
Medtronic Sofamor Danek, Synthes Spine and DePuy, which have larg-
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er marketing forces and significantly greater resources than we have.

Typically, weight-bearing tissues are not osteoinductive. Our propri-
etary OsteoActive® surface treatment of weight-bearing allograft
bone tissue allows the surface of the tissue to become ostecinductive,
allowing for faster incorporation of the tissue info a patient’'s own
bone, thereby aiding the process of spinal fusion. Our bio-implants are
non-frozen which allows these grafts to be stored on the shelf instead
of in freezers and for the surgeon to be more precise in selecting the
grafts that will be used in a procedure, thus reducing the number of
grafts a hospital must purchase.,

Once we are able to use our new proprietary Plexus Processing
Technology on a commercial basis, of which there can be no assur-
ance, it should allow us to utilize more of the available allograft bone
fissue in the future for weight-bearing grafts, thus increasing the avail-
ability of such grafts. All of these innovations do and will confinue to
differentiate Osteotech processed bone from our competitors.

Starting in 2006, Ostectech will broaden its Spinal based business with
its new Xpanse™ Bone Insert and GraftCage™ PEEK spacer products,
that represent the first “hybrid-type” interbody device that features a
synthetic sfructure and a “bio-active” proprietary allograft core. These
products will bundle effectively with our current Graftech® Bio-implant
line of structural spinal allografts, and will enable Osteotech to com-
pete in the fast growing Synthetic Interbody Fusion Device Market
(IBF), that has shown rapid growth during 2005. Growth has taken
place within this segment due to the acceptance of PEEK material as
an alternative for interbody device application and recent surgeon
reimbursement trends, that have produced some shift in surgeon uti-
lization from structural spinal allograft to PEEK interbody devices. We
estimate this market has approached $200 million during 2005, and
represents a revenue growth opportunity for Osteotech, as we have
not previously competed in this segment.

In order to maintain a leading position in the allograft bone tissue pro-
cessing market and to encourage more surgeons to switch from auto-
graft bone tissue to our processed allograft bone tissue, we plan fo!

* leverage our knowledge of allograft bone tissue pro-
cessing to expand our proprietary tissue safety claims
to our weight-bearing mineralized allograft bone tis-
sue;

* expand our external scientific presence through pub-
lication and presentation of clinical research and out-
come studies;

* continue to expand our market differenfiation
through ftissue performance improvements, including
line extensions of existing allograft bone tissue prod-




ucts and new product infroductions; and

* increase education of surgeons regarding the use of
allograft bone fissue through expanded grand
rounds, think tanks, seminars, workshops and the infernet.

The strength of our medical education and our research and clinical
research studies will play an increasingly productive role in our
Infernational business expansion, as we address the needs of surgeons
for information about how to obtain better bone grafting results.

h
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Since being introduced to the market in 2004, commercially available
BMPs (Bone Morphogenic Proteins) have changed the shape of the
bone grafting market significantly. While only FDA cleared for certain
indications, many surgeons choose to use BMPs in off-label indications
where there may be more challenging hecaling environments,

To remain competitive in the ever-growing and changing bone graft
substitutes market, Osteotech hopes to redefine the demineralized
bone market with enhanced Grafton® DBM technology. The purpose
of enhanced Grafton® DBM technology is to provide a highty active
n eW product that will cut-perform existing DBMs and more cost-effectively

compete with recombinant BMPs,
technology

Enhanced Grafton® DBM, a product in the Iate research phase, is
expected to produce more bone over a faster period of time. We
anficipate these products will perform at an even higher level than
Graffon® DBM, at a level closer to commercially available recombinant
BMP products. Animal research shows enhanced Grafton® DBM produces
four times more bone than standard DBM.

This product will serve as the basis for a wide array of indication specif-
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ic products, in which the bone forming potency will be tuned to the
desired indication as well as enhance Osteotech’s impressive infellec-
tual property portfolio. We anticipate a release to the market of
enhanced Grafton® DBM in 2008,

pio-implants

Debuting in 2006 is Osteotech’s first bone-polymer hybrid implont
designed for interbody use. The GraftCage™ Spacer, a vertebral body
replacement device made of a radiclucent PEEK-

OPTIMA® polymer, is a load-bearing device

which provides an optimal environment

for the Xpanse™ Bone Insert, a biclog-
ic core. The Xpanse™ Bone Insert is
a unigue blend of demineralized
cortical and cancellous allo-
graft, which upon in-vivo
rehydration, is designed to
expand to the bony con-

tours of a cavity. Osteotech’s
GraftCage™ Spacer used with
the Xpanse™ Bone Insert provides
an advanced option for interbody
fusion. The polymer spacer provides
structural support, while the bioactive core
is designed to promote hedaling.

Accredited by the

AATB since 1990, Osteotech

has a heritage of safety that includes more

Additionally, the Xpanse™ Bone Insert can be used in bone graffing

procedures as an individual graft or in combination with autograft or than 3,500,000 processed allografis without
other forms of allograft bone. Xpanse™ Bone Inserts are designed to fit . . o
within GraffCage™ Spacers, but can be sized in the O.R. fo fit in and a single confirmed case of disease transmission.

around other spinal fusion devices.

Osteotech’s next generation interbody grafts will be based on our pro-
prietary Plexus Processing Technology. Our Plexus Family of
Biocomposites are osteoconductive scaffolds of mineralized bone
fioers encased in a resorbable polymer which completely remodels
intfo host bone. The resorbable polymer contributes fo the weight-bear-
ing ability of the scaffold during the initial process of bone formation.
As new bone forms the polymer resorbs, resulting in completely remod-
eled bone across a significant gap with no artifacts remaining.

15
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bone-polymer composite bone void filler

We have expanded our proprietary Plexus Processing Technology plat-
form to include products that range from bone void filling products
that remodel quickly while imparting little structural strength to load-
bearing structural grafts that remodel! slowly to maintain strength dur-
ing the healing process. The first of the Plexus Family of Biocomposites
will be introduced in late 2006 in the form of a bone void filler using
polymers with extensive biocompatibility and clinical history. The Plexus
Family of Biocomposites demonstrates deep penetration by cells and
initicte remodeling as early as four weeks.

Plexus P is a porous resorbable scaffold in which interconnected pores
simulate bone structure and facilitate absorption of blood or blood
products. Plexus P will be available in granular or monolithic for a vari-
ety of applications. Applicable uses include filing irregular shaped
defects of the acetabulum; backfil in the iiac crest or facilitating
spinal fusion. Plexus P Bone Void Filler is biocompatible, safe and stable.
It s expected to be released 1o the market in late 2006.

Plexus M, supplied in solid form, becomes moldable upon heating and
sets at body temperature. Once heated, Plexus M has ample working
time allowing the surgeon time to shape and press the biocomposite
into bony voids, such as back fill for the iliac crest or surgically created
defects often found in the acetabulum or proximal femur due fo
removal of implants and hardware during revision surgery. A possible
use for Plexus M is screw augmentation, as the biocomposite is flow-
able - penefrating and locking into the inferstices of the surrounding
bone. Plexus M fills the void and remodels into healthy, robust bone.
Plexus M is expected to be released to the market in 2007.

Osteotech is setting the standard for osteobiociogics through innovative
research and delivering key technologies via new products to vastly
improve bone headling and patient care. All of these innovations do
and will continue to differentiate Ostecotech processed bone from our
competitors.







Company Overview

We are innovators in musculoskeletal science. We develop technologies and products to efficiently and
effectively utilize human bone and bone connective tissue (“allograft bone tissue”). We have leveraged our
expertise in musculoskeletal tissue technology to develop innovative processes and proprietary products that are
widely used by orthopaedic, spinal, neurological and oral/maxillofacial surgeons for: spinal fusion procedures; to
repair and replace bone loss caused by trauma or certain disease states; to augment prosthetic implant procedures;
and to replace damaged ligaments and tendons.

Based on our knowledge of the allograft bone tissue industry, we believe that we are one of the world's
largest processors of allograft bone tissue. The allograft bone tissue we process is procured domestically by
independent tissue banks or Tissue Recovery Organizations, or TRO’s, primarily through the donation of tissue from
deceased human donors. Internationally, we have established our own tissue recovery operations to procure
donated allograft bone tissue. The products and services we have developed and process from allograft bone tissue
are used primarily for transplantation. We believe that our market position is attributable to our proprietary product
lines; our global supply of allograft bone tissue; our clients' donor recovery programs; our sales and marketing
organization; and the substantial investment we have made in processing technology to ensure stringent standards
and rigorous quality control, which combined with extensive donor screening and testing performed by us and our
clients has significantly reduced the risk of transmission of infectious agents.

We have two primary operating segments:
e  The Demineralized Bone Matrix (DBM) Segment, or the DBM Segment, and
e The Base Allograft Bone Tissue Segment, or Base Tissue Segment.

Revenues in the DBM Segment are primarily related to the processing and marketing of Grafion® DBM.
Domestically, either we or our clients distribute Grafton® DBM to end-users. Grafton® DBM distributed by us is
processed from allograft bone tissue recovered for us by tissue banks and TROs or provided to us by our clients.
Grafton® DBM distributed by our clients is processed by us from allograft bone tissue provided by each respective
client, in consideration of a processing fee paid by such clients. All units of Grafton® DBM processed by us
contain our brand name, Grafton® DBM, and will contain either our company name or our client’s company name
depending upon the contractual relationship pursuant to which we process the allograft bone tissue. In either case,
domestically we market Grafton® DBM to end-users, who in turn contact either us or our clients to purchase
Grafton® DBM tissue forms.

Internationally, Grafton® DBM is marketed and distributed by our agents and distributors to end-users.
We process the Grafton® DBM that is distributed internationally in our domestic processing facility from allograft -
bone tissue recovered by our tissue recovery program in Bulgaria, from our domestic tissue recovery partners or
from our domestic or international clients. Such Grafton® DBM will contain our brand name, and either our
company name or our clients’ company name depending on the source of the allograft bone tissue.

We process Grafton® DBM using our validated, proprietary demineralization process. When applied to
cortical bone, this process yields allograft bone tissue which has osteoinductive (the process by which bone is
induced to grow) and osteoconductive (the matrix provided by allograft bone tissue into which the host bone can
grow) capabilities greater than other available forms of mineralized allograft bone tissue, and we believe, greater
than other competitive demineralized allograft bone tissue forms.

The DBM Segment also includes revenues from our processing of two private label DBMs. One such
private label DBM is marketed by DePuy Orthopaedics, Inc. and DePuy Spine, Inc., or collectively DePuy, and
LifeNet, and distributed by LifeNet. In January, 2003, we entered into a five-year agreement with DePuy and
LifeNet for the processing and distribution to the United States hospital market of a private label DBM. Under the
terms of the agreement, we process the DBM product to specifications determined by LifeNet, from allograft bone
tissue supplied by LifeNet. DePuy and LifeNet market and promote this DBM carrier product to surgeons
performing trauma, joint revision and spinal procedures and LifeNet ships and invoices the private label DBM to
hospitals and surgeons. The second private label DBM is marketed and distributed by Smith & Nephew, Inc.
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pursuant to a five-year agreement dated April 1, 2004. Under the terms of the agreement, we process allograft bone
tissue recovered for us into a private label DBM based on specifications agreed to by both parties. Smith & Nephew
promotes, distributes and invoices the private label DBM to hospitals and surgeons performing general orthopaedic
procedures.

In March, 2002, the Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, informed us that it was changing the
regulatory status of Grafton® DBM and would henceforth regulate it as a medical device. We believe the FDA’s
decision to regulate Grafton® DBM as a medical device results from the FDA’s decision to regulate all DBMs with
a carrier, including those processed and marketed by our competitors and the private label products processed by us,
as medical devices. As a result we were required to. obtain 510(k) clearance from the FDA for our Grafton® DBM
product line. In addition, we were required to obtain FDA clearance for the private label products we process for
Smith & Nephew, while LifeNet was responsible for obtaining the necessary 510(k) clearance for the private label
product we process for it.

Commencing in late 2004 through the first half of 2005, we filed five different 510(k) applications with the
FDA covering our entire Grafton® DBM product line and the private label products we process for Smith &
Nephew. From November, 2005 through January, 2006, we received clearance from the FDA for all five of our
510(k) applications. LifeNet applied for and received 510(k) clearance from the FDA for the private label DBM
products we process for it.

In the Base Tissue Segment we process allograft bone tissue primarily into mineralized weight-bearing
tissue forms. These tissue forms include our proprietary line of Graftech® Bio-implants and other weight-bearing
traditional tissues, which include femoral cross sections, fibula wedges and cortical struts. In addition, we make
non-weight bearing traditional tissue forms, including cancellous and cortical chips, and we process bone connective
tissue into a line of soft tissue grafts utilized primarily in sports medicine procedures. Substantially all of the tissue
grafts in the Base Tissue Segment are processed in our domestic processing facility, although certain non-weight
bearing tissue grafts are processed at our facility in France.

Graftech® Bio-implant spacers and ramps, which are utilized in spinal fusion procedures, are marketed and
distributed domestically by us regardless of whether such bio-implants are processed from allograft bone tissue
recovered for us or for our clients. Domestically, other traditional allograft tissue forms processed in this Segment
are marketed and distributed by our clients and by us from tissue recovered for the respective party. Internationally,
these tissue forms are generally marketed and distributed to the end-user through distributors. To the extent that
TRO’s recover allograft bone tissue on our behalf, we process and distribute this tissue either as bio-implants or
other traditional tissue forms primarily to domestic end-users. The Graftech® Bio-implants units processed by us
include our brand name and, in the case of client-provided allograft bone tissue, the client’s company name, or our
company name if the bio-implant is processed from allograft bone tissue recovered on our behalf. Packaging for the
traditional allograft bone tissue forms processed by us include the specific allograft bone tissue form product name
and either our client’s company name or our company name depending on whether the allograft bone tissue was
recovered for the client or for us. At OST Developpement, SA, or OST, our subsidiary located in Clermont-Ferrand,
France, we process OsteoPure™ Femoral head bone tissue, which we market and distribute internationally.

All other products not falling within these two segments are aggregated under the category of “other”.
OST processes, markets and distributes, primarily in Europe, Asia and the Middle East, bovine bone tissue products
which are utilized as bone graft substitutes by surgeons.

We operate under a number of different business models in the DBM and Base Tissue Segments based
upon the distribution method used and the nature of the underlying contractual agreement related to the organization
that supplies us with allograft bone tissue for processing.

The majority of our revenue in the DBM Segment is generated from our direct distribution of Grafton®
DBM processed from allograft bone tissue recovered directly for us by TRO’s and certain tissue banks, from tissue
supplied by our clients to be distributed under our brand and company name, and from our direct distribution of
Grafton® DBM for some of our clients. In this business model, we reimburse our clients, TRO’s and tissue banks
who recover allograft bone tissue for their services. A portion of our revenues in this Segment are processing
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revenues generated from our clients in consideration for processing and marketing Grafton® DBM on their behalf.
In this business model our clients distribute the Grafton® DBM to end users. We also process two private label
DBMs, which under each agreement, we charge a processing fee for our services. LifeNet supplies the allograft
bone tissue utilized to process its private label products, while we supply the allograft bone tissue utilized in Smith
& Nephew’s private label products.

In the Base Tissue Segment, the majority of our revenues are generated from Graftech® Bio-implants,
which we process from allograft bone tissue provided by our clients or which we process from allograft bone tissue
recovered on our behalf. We market and distribute the Graftech® Bio-implants to hospitals and surgeons. We also
generate revenues from our clients on a per donor basis for the processing of the clients’ donor tissue, which
includes the processing of traditional allograft bone tissue forms. We also generate revenues from the distribution of
traditional allograft bone tissue forms to hospitals and surgeons that were processed from tissue that was recovered
directly for us.

In the United States, we process allograft bone tissue pursuant to contracts with a number of clients, -
including MTF and LifeNet. We also process allograft bone tissue for several smaller tissue banks in the United
States and Europe. Our clients and TROs who recover tissue on our behalf are generally responsible for donor
procurement, including donor screening. Internationally, we process allograft bone tissue recovered by our tissue
recovery operation in Bulgaria. This allograft bone tissue is processed at our processing facility in the United States.
The processed tissue grafts are distributed by OST throughout the international marketplace.

We market our proprietary allograft bone tissue forms such as Grafton® DBM and Graftech® Bio-
implants, and traditional allografts bone tissue forms through independent agents and direct field sales personnel.
Generally, our clients market the traditional allograft bone tissue forms that we process for them, primarily using
direct field personnel.

Information relating to our revenues for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 by geographic
area is summarized as follows:

(in thousands) United States Europe Consolidated

Revenues

For the year ended December 31, _
2005 $79,957 $13,350 $93,307 .
2004 $77,317 $11,260 $88,577
2003 $86,070 $ 8,363 $94,433

For a discussion of (1) our segments for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and our long-
lived assets as of December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 see Note 20 of “Notes to Consotidated Financial Statements”
and (2) our deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 see Note 15 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.” '

In 2005, we had one customer, the Musculoskeletal Transplant Foundation, Inc., or MTF, which accounted
for $25.0 million, or 27%, of net revenues. In 2004 and 2003, MTF accounted for $18.3 million and $23.4 million, -
or 21% and 25%, respectively, of net revenues. In 2004 and 2003, the American Red Cross Tissue Services, or
ARC, accounted for $18.4 million and $23.0 million, or 21% and 24%, respectively, or net revenues. In January,
2005, MTF acquired the assets of the allograft tissue banking operation of ARC.
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Management's Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition And Results Of Operations
Management Overview

We generate the majority of our revenues from fees charged for the processing and distribution of our
proprietary allograft tissue products, Grafton® DBM and Graftech® Bio-implants, directly to hospitals and surgeons,
domestically through our direct and agency sales force and internationally through stocking distributors. Through
these two distribution methods, we also distribute traditional allograft bone tissue grafts, including soft tissue grafts.
We also generate revenues by processing donated allograft bone tissue for clients, primarily the Musculoskeletal
Transplant Foundation (“MTF”), into traditional allograft bone-tissue grafts or Grafton® DBM, which we return to
our clients and they distribute to hospitals and surgeons. Additionally, we generate revenues by processing two
private label DBM products for two different customers.

When we process allograft bone tissue for clients or process the two private label DBM products, we
generate revenues by charging our customers a fee for our services. For the initial processing of the allograft bone
tissue, which includes the production of traditional and soft tissue grafts, we generally charge a flat service fee.
When we process Grafton® DBM for our clients or process a private label DBM for certain customers, we charge a
service fee equal to a specified contractual percentage of the end user list price for each specific product code.
When we distribute allograft bone tissue grafts directly to surgeons and hospitals through our domestic direct and
agency sales force, we charge a service fee to the hospital based upon our published end user list price, or in certain
instances, based upon a negotiated discount to our end user list price. Internationally, we generally charge a
contracted service fee for each allograft tissue graft provided to our stocking distributors.

As we have transitioned our general product distribution model from client processing to direct sales, we
have been able to garner more of the actual end user sale price for each unit distributed by us. The cost of each unit
we distribute has also increased, since our unit cost now includes the costs associated with donor recovery and donor
eligibility determinations, which previously was borne solely by our clients. As such, our direct distribution efforts
have a favorable impact on our revenues, but an unfavorable impact on our costs and gross profit margins, although
theoretically we generate the same dollar margin on each unit sale. However, as the allograft bone tissue market has
become more competitive, price discounting has increased, which is also negatively impacting the margin we
generate on each unit sale.

We have taken steps in 2005 to favorably influence our future gross profit margins by accelerating the
development of new products, which will allow us to better utilize the allograft bone tissue we process; re-aligning
our work-in-process and finished goods tissue inventories to allow us to increase our inventory velocity; and
reducing processing costs and increasing processing efficiencies. We expect these efforts will continue through the
first half of 2006, while we anticipate we will not realize the full benefits from these efforts until the first half of
2007.

In 2003, we completed the sale of the building housing our principal processing operation to an unrelated
party for $16.5 million in cash. We utilized the proceeds from this transaction to repay all of the then outstanding
indebtedness under our Credit Facility of $11.0 million and then terminated our line of credit and our Credit Facility.
The remaining proceeds from this transaction were utilized to pay expenses related to this transaction of 3.2 million
and provide additional cash reserves of $5.3 million. We utilized $5.2 million of cash in 2005 to fund our capital
expenditures, normal debt service and our net loss. In 2006, based upon our current operating plan, we anticipate
utilizing a portion of our current cash reserves to fund capital expenditures, normal debt service, severance and
retirement payments to former executives and employees and other components of working capital.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates and may adjust them based upon the latest information
available to us. These estimates generally include those related to product returns, bad debts, inventories including
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purchase commitments, deferred processing costs including reserves for rework, excess and obsolescence, long-
lived assets, income taxes, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates

used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.
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We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers
to make required payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. Changes in estimates of
collection risk related to accounts receivable can result in decreases or increases in current period results of
operations.

We record reductions to revenue for estimated returns based upon historical experience. If future returns are
less than our historical experience, reduction in estimated reserves would increase revenue. Alternatively,
should returns exceed historical experience, additional allowances would be required, which would reduce
revenue.

We write down inventory and deferred processing costs for estimated excess, obsolescence or unmarketable
products and allograft bone tissue forms equal to the difference between cost and the estimated market value
based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. Excess and obsolescence could occur
from numerous factors, including, but not limited to, the competitive nature of the market, technological
change, expiration and changes in surgeon preference. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those
projected by management, additional write-downs may be required, including provisions to reduce inventory
and deferred processing costs to net realizable value. In each period, we also assess our production activity in
relationship to historical experience and normal capacity and evaluate the need to reflect processing costs as
either period costs or as a component of deferred processing costs. In periods where our actual processing
activities are less than historical experience/normal capacity, we charge an appropriate portion of our processing
costs directly to cost of services in the consolidated statements of operations. In addition, we provide reserves,
if any, for the difference between our contractual purchase commitments and our projected purchasing patterns
based upon the maintenance of adequate inventory levels and forecasted revenues. If actual revenue is less
favorable than those forecasted by management, additional reserves may be required; alternatively, if revenue is
stronger than forecasted by management, such reserves would be reduced.

We record an asset retirement obligation when a cost to retire an asset is incurred or when we determine a cost
will be incurred in the future to retire an asset. The asset retirement obligation is accrued at its estimated fair
value with a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset, if appropriate. We
determine the amount of the asset retirement obligation based upon a number of assumptions requiring
professional judgment and make adjustments to the asset retirement obligation recorded based on the passage or
time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash flows related
to the retirement of the asset.

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to
be realized. While we have considered future taxable income, in the event we were to determine that we would
be able to realize our deferred tax assets in the future in excess of our net recorded amount, an adjustment to the
deferred tax asset would increase income in the period such determination was made. Likewise, should we
determine that we would not be able to realize all or part of our net deferred tax asset in the future, an
adjustment to the deferred tax asset would be charged to income in the period such determination was made.

We accrue current and future tax liabilities based upon levels of taxable income, tax planning strategies and
assessments of the timing of taxability of tax attributes. While we have considered current tax laws in
establishing our tax liabilities, in the event we were to settle our tax liabilities for less than amounts accrued we
would increase income in the period such determination was made. Should we determine it would cost us more
to settle our tax liabilities, an adjustment would be charged to income thus reducing income in that period.




* Litigation is subject to many uncertainties and we are unable to predict the outcome of the pending litigation.
When we are reasonably able to determine the probable minimum or ultimate liability, if any, which may result
from any of the pending litigation, we will record a provision for our best estimate of such liability, and if
appropriate, will record a benefit for the amounts covered by insurance. If the outcome or resolution of the
pending litigation is for amounts greater than we have accrued, an adjustment will be charged to income in the
period the determination is made. Alternatively, should the outcome or resolution be for less than we have
accrued, we would increasekincome in the period the determination is made.

Results of Operations

The following table set forth our consolidated results of operations for 2005, 2004 and 2003:

Percent Change

; 2005 2004
Year Ended December 31, vs. vs.

(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues $ 93,307 $ 88,577 $ 94,433 5% -6%
Cost of services and products 61,445 52,502 42,071 17% 25%
Gross profit 31,862 36,075 52,362 -12% -31%
Operating expenses 51,930 42,705 41,730 22% 2%
Income from litigation settlement 7,500 - -100%
Operating income (loss) (20,068) (6,630) 18,132 -203% -137%
Other income (expense) (1,564) 500 (386) -413% 230%
Income (loss) before income taxes (21,632) (6,130) 7,746 -253% -135%
Income tax provision (benefit) (515) (847) 6,879 39% -112%
Net income (loss) $(21,117) $ (5,283) $ 10,867 -300% -149%
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic § (1.23) 3 (31 $ .64

Diluted § (1.23) 3 (.31) $ .62

Net Income (Loss)

We incurred a net loss in 2005 of $21.1 million, or $1.23 diluted loss per share, primarily due to costs
incurred to implement our strategic initiatives to re-align our work-in-process and finished goods tissue inventories,
which negatively impacted our gross margins, increased operating expenses, foreign currency translation losses on
intercompany debt and an income tax benefit on our operating loss at an effective tax rate substantially lower than

the statutory rate.

In 2004, the net loss of $5.3 million, or $.31 diluted loss per share, resulted primarily from the impairment
of certain assets related to our former processing environment located in Shrewsbury, a severance charge for the
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reorganization of our sales and marketing organizations, provisions for the exit from our metal spinal implant
product lines and a disproportional effective tax rate.

Net income in 2003 of $10.9 million, or $.62 diluted earnings per share, which included a pre-tax gain of
$7.5 million related to the settlement of certain patent litigation, resulted primarily from favorable gross profit
margins.

Net Revenues

Net revenues increased 5% in 2005 to $93.3 million as compared to 2004 net revenues of $88.6 million.
The increase in 2005 net revenues resulted principally from increased average unit selling prices related to the
distribution of Grafton® DBM domestically because of an increase in unit sales volume sold directly by our agency
sales force and a decline in unit sales volume by our clients, and increased unit volumes in the international
distribution of Grafton® DBM. Net revenues declined 6% in 2004 to $88.6 million from net revenues of $94.4
million in 2003. The decline in 2004 net revenues was primarily due to the loss of revenues associated with metal
spinal implant product lines of $3.2 million as a result of our exit from this portion of our business effective June 30,
2004 and the decline in domestic unit sales volumes in our two primary business segments, partially offset by
increased unit volume from our international operations and the favorable impact of exchange rates between the
U.S. dollar and the Euro of approximately $1.1 million.

The following table details the components of our net revenues for the years presented:

Percent Change
2005 - 2004
Year Ended December 31, VvS. vSs.
(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
DBM Segment
Domestic:
Grafton® DBM $40,669 $35,282 $39,071 15% -10%
Private Label 3,920 4,059 2,267 -3% 79%
44,589 39,341 41,338 13% -5%
International: ‘
Grafton® DBM 7,477 6,449 4,956 16% 30%
Total DBM Segment 52,066 45,790 46,294 14% - -1%
Base Tissue Segment
Domestic:
Traditional Tissue:
Processing ' 11,057 12,972 15,894 -15% -18%
Direct Distribution 6,645 2,851 777 133% 267%
Graftech® Bio-implants 16,949 19,820 22,611 -14% -12%
34,651 35,643 39,282 -3% -9%
International:’
Traditional Tissue:
Processing 419 401 380 4% 6%
Direct Distribution 4,765 3,286 1,803 45% 82%
5,184 3,687 2,183 41% 69%
Total Base
Tissue Segment 39,835 39,330 41,465 1% -5%
Other Product Lines 1,406 3,457 6,674 -59% -48%
Net Revenues $93,307 $88,577 $94,433 5% -6%
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2005 Compared to 2004

DBM Segment revenues, which consists primarily of domestic and international Grafton® DBM revenues
and revenues from the processing of two private label DBMs, increased 14% in 2005 as compared to 2004.
Domestic Grafton® DBM revenues increased 15% compared to 2004 substantially as a result of recognition of
higher per unit selling prices from the continued implementation of the strategic initiative to distribute our
proprietary products directly to end users, for which we recognize a greater portion of the end user selling price. In
2005, domestic unit sales volume of Grafton® DBM was relatively flat with unit sales volumes in 2004. Revenues
from the shipment of private label DBM tissue forms declined 3% in 2005, primarily due to a reduction in orders
from one of our partners as they adjusted their inventory levels. International Grafton® DBM revenues increased
16% in 2005 primarily due to increased unit sales volume over 2004 resulting from increased penetration in existing
markets and the continued expansion into additional markets.

Base Tissue Segment revenues in 2005 were relatively flat with Base Tissue Segment revenues in 2004.
Service fees generated by processing allograft bone tissue for clients declined 15% in 2005 as compared to 2004,
primarily due to processing 916 fewer donors for clients in 2005, partially offset by a 22% increase in the average
processing fee per donor in 2005. We expect processing fee revenues to continue to decline over the next several
years as our processing agreements with our clients expire and are not replaced. Revenues generated from the
distribution of Graftech® Bio-implants declined 14% primarily due to continued lower demand and increased
competition from polymer based spinal implants. We anticipate revenues from our Graftech® Bio-implant product
line will continue to decline over the next several years due to increased competition from non-allograft bone spinal
implants. Beginning in 2006, we will begin distribution of our own polymer based spinal implant product line,
GraftCage™ Spacer, which combined with our Xpanse™ Bone Inserts provides an alternative for surgeons who
prefer a polymer based implant. Revenues from the world-wide distribution of traditional tissue increased 86% in
2005 compared to 2004, mainly from increased unit sales volume as we continue to expand our world-wide presence
in this market.

Revenues from other product lines in 2005 mainly relate to the processing and distribution of bovine tissue
graft in Europe and the Middle East. In 2004, revenues from other product lines included revenues from bovine
tissue grafts and revenues from the distribution of metal spinal implants prior to our exit from that product line in
June, 2004. '

2004 Compared to 2003

DBM Segment revenues declined slightly in 2004 as compared to 2003. The decline in DBM Segment
revenues is primarily due to a 10% decline in domestic Grafton® DBM revenues, partially offset by a 30% increase
in international Grafton® DBM revenues and a 79% increase in private label DBM revenues. Domestic Grafton®
DBM revenues declined primarily due to a decline in unit volume due to continued strong competition, partially
offset by incremental revenues due to our capturing more of the end user sale price as a result of our direct
distribution efforts. International Grafton® DBM revenues increased in 2004 over 2003 primarily due to increased
unit volume and the impact of favorable exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro. Private label DBM
revenue increased primarily due to initial shipments in the second half of 2004 under our second private label
arrangement. :

In 2004, Base Tissue Segment revenues declined 5% compared to 2003. The decline in Base Tissue
Segment revenues in 2004 is primarily attributable to an 18% decline in base tissue processing fees resulting from
processing 403 fewer donors for our clients and a 12% decline in domestic Graftech® Bio-implant revenues due to a
decling in unit volume and increased pricing pressures. These declines were partially offset by a 138% increase in
2004 revenues from the world-wide direct distribution of traditional allograft bone tissue forms.

Revenues from other product lines declined 48% in 2004 as compared to 2003 mainly related to our

decision to cease marketing and distributing metal spinal implant products effective June 30, 2004. Revenues
generated from metal spinal implants were $1.7 million and $4.9 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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Major Customers

In 2005, we had one customer, MTF, which accounted for $25.0 million, or 27%, of net revenues. In 2004
and 2003, MTF accounted for $18.3 million and $23.4 million, or 21% and 25%, respectively, of net revenues. In
2004 and 2003, ARC accounted for $18.4 million and $23.0 million, or 21% and 24%, respectively, or net revenues.
In January, 2005, MTF acquired the assets of the allograft tissue banking operation of ARC.

Gross Margin
Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Gross Profit $31,862 $ 36,075 $ 52,362
Gross Margin 34.1% 40.7% 55.4%

Gross margin declined in 2005 as compared to 2004 primarily due to our strategic initiative to reduce work-
in-process and finished goods tissue inventories and increase overall tissue inventory velocity, which resulted in our
decision in May, 2005 to reduce unit production levels below unit sales levels for the balance of 2005 to allow us to
consume existing tissue inventories and directly reduce overall tissue inventory levels. As a result of this decision,
our production activities fell below the range of normal capacity, as defined in SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs — an
amendment to Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43, resulting in charges of $2.5 million. In addition, we also
recognized charges of $4.8 million related to reserves and write-offs for excess, obsolete and expiring tissue
inventories, primarily in the Graftech® Bio-implant product line, as a result of our standard inventory policies and
procedures and to address our tissue inventory strategic initiatives. The decline in gross margin also resulted from
the continued shift in revenue mix, primarily related to the growth of international revenues, which represent 14% of
net revenues in 2005 as compared to 12% in 2004. International revenues have a lower gross margin than domestic
revenues due to utilization of a stocking distributor business model.

The decline in gross margin in 2004 compared to 2003 was primarily attributable to the charge associated
with the impairment of certain assets that as of December, 2004 will no longer be utilized to process allograft bone
tissue related to our former processing environment located at our facility in Shrewsbury of $5.9 million, the decline
in unit production volume resulting from the decline in revenues, which has negatively impacted our ability to
absorb fixed costs, and the charges, net of gains, associated with our exit from the metal spinal implant business.

Operating Expenses
Percent
Change
2005 2004
Year Ended December 31, vs. vs.
_(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
Marketing, selling and
general and administrative $ 46,909 $38,127 $37,786 23% 1%
Research & development 5,021 4,578 3,944 10% 16%
Total $51,930 $42,705 $41,730 22% 2%

Marketing, selling, general and administrative expenses increased in 2005 as compared to 2004, principally
due to: the costs associated with strengthening and diversifying our domestic tissue sources of $3.2 million;
severance and retirement costs of $2.0 million associated with the retirement of our former Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, the resignation of our former Chief Science Officer and certain other employees
terminated in the fourth quarter of 2005; increased professional fees, including the costs of $1.9 million associated
with MTF’s unsolicited proposal to acquire Osteotech; and increased commissions associated with the increase in
revenues,

26




Marketing, selling, general and administrative expenses increased slightly in 2004 compared to 2003,
primarily due to the severance costs associated with the reorganization of our sales and marketing departments in the
first quarter of 2004, the costs associated with our “think tank” marketing and sales program, and the out-of-pocket
costs of $1.0 million incurred to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, partially offset by
lower domestic commission expenses due to the decline in domestic revenues.

Research and development expenses increased 10% in 2005 compared to 2004 due to the timing of
completion of research and development programs, our efforts related to the development of new product lines or
line extension for existing product lines, including Grafton® DBM Orthoblend, which was launched in April, 2005,
and the Xpanse™ Bone Insert, which was introduced in September, 2005.

Research and development expenses increased 16% in 2004 as compared to 2003. The increase in 2004
was primarily attributable to our efforts to develop extensions of existing product lines, continued development of
new product lines, including our Plexus Technology, and the development of new processing methodologies and
technologtes, including a terminal sterilization process for the allograft bone tissue we process.

We anticipate that we will be able to control our marketing, selling, general and administrative expenses in
2006 and, as such, believe that such expenses will decline slightly in 2006 from 2005 levels. We expect that
research and development expenditures will continue to increase in 2006 and beyond due to new projects and
programs and increased activity on existing projects and programs, including the continued development of Enhance
Grafton® DBM and our Plexus Technology.

Income From Litigation Settlement

In 2003, we settled all claims arising out of a patent lawsuit and the other party agreed to pay us an
aggregate of $7.5 million. In October, 2003, we received the initial payment of $2.5 million in cash, an interest
bearing $5.0 million promissory note and a $5.0 million letter of credit collateralizing the promissory note. In
connection with this settlement, we recognized pre-tax income of $7.5 million in 20603.

Operating Income (Loss)

Percent Change
2005 2004
Year Ended December 31, Vs. VSs.

(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
DBM Segment § (344) § 4,383 $ 20,646 -108% -79%
Base Tissue Segment (20,055) (9,282) 2,703 -116% -443%
Other Product Lines 331 (1,731 (5,217) 119% 67%
Operating Income (loss) $(20,068) § (6,630) $ 18,132 -203% -137%

We incurred consolidated operating losses in 2005 and 2004. The operating losses in 2005 in the DBM
Segment and the Base Tissue Segment was primarily due to lower gross margins as a result of our strategic
initiatives for work-in-process and finished goods inventories and increased operating expenses. In addition, the
DBM Segment had lower gross margins due to the continued shift in revenue mix from higher gross margin
products (domestic client-based Grafton® DBM) to lower gross margin products (international Grafton® DBM,
private label DBMs and the domestic direct distribution of Grafton® DBM). The Base Tissue Segment operating
loss bears a substantial portion of the charges related to our strategic initiatives related to tissue inventories as the
Graftech® Bio-implant product line and inventory was a primary focus of these initiatives.

We incurred a consolidated operating loss in 2004 compared to consolidated operating income in 2003.

The decline in DBM Segment operating income in 2004 is primarily due to a change in revenue mix from higher
gross margin products to lower gross margin products; the general decline in unit volume, which resulted in the
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underabsorption of fixed overheads; increased operating expenses associated with the shift of sales and marketing
resources from marketing metal spinal implant products to focus on our tissue businesses; and a portion of the
severance costs related to the reorganization of the sales and marketing departments. DBM Segment operating
income in 2003 included income of $7.5 million from the settlement of certain patent litigation. We incurred an
operating loss in the Base Tissue Segment in 2004 compared to an operating income in the Base Tissue Segment in
2003. The operating loss in 2004 is primarily at’mbutable to the decline in revenues related to base tissue processing
activities and domestic distribution of Graftech® Bio- -implants; the decline in unit volume; increased operating
expenses associated with programs to restore revenue growth, including the shift of sales and marketing resources
from marketing metal spinal implant products to focus on our tissue businesses; a portion of the severance costs
related to the reorganization of the sales and marketing departments; and the charge associated with the impairment
of our former processing environment. Operating losses associated with other revenues is primarily associated with
our metal spinal implant business, which we exited in June, 2004 and relates mainly to the provisions to reduce
metal spinal implant inventory and instrumentation to net realizable value and legal fees associated with a lawsuit,
partially offset by the reversal of a portion of the aforementioned reserve for metal spinal implant inventory due to
the sale of the Ovation™ inventory.

Other Income (Expense)

Other expense of $1.6 million primarily represents interest expense of $1.3 million related to our long-term
debt, which was repaid in full in August, 2005, and the capital lease obligation, which arose in the sale and
leaseback of our principal processing facility in August, 2005, and foreign currency translation losses related to
intercompany debt. Other expense was partially offset by interest income on available cash balance of $.5 million in
2005.

Other income of $.5 million in 2004 related mainly to the gain on the sale of the intellectual property
associated with Ovation™ of $.6 million, foreign currency translation gains on-intercompany debt, interest income
of $.3 million, partially offset by interest expense on our long-term debt of $.6 million. Other expense of $.4 million
in 2003 related primarily to interest expense -on our long-term debt of $1.1 million, partially offset by interest
income on available cash balance of $.1 million and foreign currency translation gains associated with the impact of
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro on intercompany debt.

In fourth quarter 2003, as a result of a decision to utilize excess cash flow, if any, generated by our French
subsidiary to repay the remaining outstanding balance of its intercompany debt, in accordance with SFAS No. 52,
“Foreign Currency Translation”, we recognized the impact of foreign currency translation gains and losses on the
outstanding balance of the intercompany debt in our results of operations. Foreign currency translation losses of $.8
million were recognized in other income (expense) in 2005 and foreign currency translation gains of $.5 million
were recognized in other income (expense) for each of 2004 and 2003, related to the impact of exchange rates
between the U.S. dollar and the Euro.

On July 7, 2005, the Board of Directors declared $5.5 million of intercompany loans between the domestic
company and OST Developpement S.A., our French subsidiary, to be permanent debt requiring no principal
payments on such intercompany loans for the foreseeable future. As a result, and pursuant to SFAS No. 52, from
July 7, 2005 forward that portion of the intercompany debt will no longer be subject to the effects of variations in
currency exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro. The remaining outstanding balance under
intercompany loans between the domestic company and OST Developpement will continue to be subject to
variations in currency exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro.

Future translation gains and losses may have a material impact on our results of operations in the event of
significant changes in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the Euro, although the impact of such gains and
losses should not have any impact on consolidated cash flows.
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Income Tax Provision

In 2005, we provided a benefit for income taxes primarily for our ability to carryback our current year
losses to prior tax years and obtain refunds and a non-cash charge to establish a valuation allowance for all domestic
and foreign deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance was established in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”, which requires an assessment of both positive and negative evidence

- when determining whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets are recoverable. The assessment under
SFAS No. 109 is required to be performed on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis. Aggregate cumulative losses
generated by our domestic operation over the last several years and the potential for operating losses in the future
represents sufficient negative evidence under SFAS No. 109 to require the establishment of a valuation allowance.
We intend to maintain the valuation allowance until sufficient positive evidence exists to support the reversal of
such valuation allowances. We will continue to assess the need to maintain existing valuation allowances or to
record additional valuation allowances based on facts and circumstances in each future period.

In 2004, we provided a benefit for income taxes related mainly to losses in our domestic operations, mostly
offset by a provision for income taxes for our French subsidiary and a non-cash charge to establish a valuation
allowance for domestic state deferred tax assets. Our effective income tax rate in 2003 was 39%. The effective
income tax rate exceeded the federal statutory income tax rate principally due to the impact of domestic state income
taxes, partially offset by federal and state tax credits.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2005 we had cash and cash equivalents of $13.5 million compared to $13.4 million at
December 31, 2004. Working capital decreased to $44.9 million at December 31, 2005 compared to $56.8 million
at December 31, 2004. The decrease in working capital in 2005 resulted primarily from the moderation of our work-
in-process and finished goods tissue inventories as a result of the strategic actions we implemented in 2005, partially
offset by our continued investment in unprocessed donor tissue inventory in preparation for the anticipated
termination of our processing agreements with MTF in 2008.

_ On August 8, 2005, the Company completed the sale of its principal processing facility located in
Eatontown, New Jersey.to an unrelated third party for $16.5 million in cash. The Company also entered into an
agreement to lease back the processing facility. The lease agreement is for an initial term of 20 years with two five-
year renewal options at thé Company’s election.  The Company retained ownership of all property and equipment,
including leasehold improvements, directly refated to the operation of the Company’s business. The transaction has
been recorded as a capital lease, with the resulting gain of approximately $3.6 million from the sale of the facility
deferred and amortized in proportion to the amortization of the leased assets. The deferred gain is reflected as a
component of long-term liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.- The Company utilized a portion of the
proceeds from the sale of our processing facility to-repay all outstanding bank debt as of August 8, 2005, of $11.0

- million. All remaining proceeds of approximately $5.3 million, net of transaction costs arising from this transaction,
will be utilized for general corporate purposes.

Net cash used by operating activities was $1.6 million in 2005 compared to net cash provided by operating
activities of $2.5 million in 2004. The decline resulted primarily from the net loss in 2005, partially offset by an
increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses, proceeds from an income tax refund and a reduction in deferred
processing costs.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $14.5 million in 2005 and is principally due to the sale of our
principal processing facility for $16.5 million in cash, partially offset by capital expendltures Net cash used by
investing activities of $1.6 million in 2004 was primarily due to capital expenditures. ‘

Net cash used in financing activities in 2005 and 2004 of $12.6 million and $2.9 million, respectively,
relates primarily to the repayment of all outstanding long-term debt in August, 2005 and principal payments on our
capital lease obligation and long-term debt, partially offset by proceeds from the exercise of stock options and the
sale of common stock pursuant to our employee stock purchase plan.
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The Company had a Credit Facility which included a $5.0 million line of credit, a mortgage loan and an
equipment term loan. On August 8, 2005, the Company entered into the sale and leaseback transaction for the
Company’s principal processing facility. A portion of the proceeds from this transaction were utilized to repay the
then outstanding balance of the mortgage and equipment term loan. The line of credit had no amounts outstanding
on August 8, 2005. As a result of these actions, the Company cancelled the line of credit and terminated the Credit
Facility.

At December 31, 2005, we had domestic federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of $13.8 million
and $31.3 million, respectively. The federal net operating loss carryforwards expire in 2025. The state net
operating loss carryforwards primarily offset New Jersey taxable income, which expire in varying amounts
beginning in 2010 through 2012. We have provided a full valuation allowances for all federal and state net
operating loss carryforwards due to the uncertainty of realizing future tax benefits from these net operating loss
carryforwards. In addition, we have domestic federal research and development credits of $20,000, which expire in
2020 and state research and development, manufacturing and other credits of $1.1 million, primarily to offset New
Jersey income taxes, which expire in varying amounts beginning in 2006 through 2012. At December 31, 2005, we
had foreign net operating loss carryforwards aggregating $6.2 million expiring in varying amounts beginning 2006
“through 2010. We have not recognized any benefit from these net operating loss carryforwards in the consolidated
financial statements because realization of the future tax benefits is uncertain.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2005, and the effects such
obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods.

Less

Than

One Years Years After

_(In thousands) Total Year 2-3 4-5 5 Years

Capital lease obligation $34,415 82,326 $4,652 $ 4,652 $22,785
Non-cancelable operating lease obligations 4,336 1,468 2,699 166 3
Retirement and severance payments 1,764 1,219 545
Asset retirement obligation — Shrewsbury facility 1,920 726 1,194
Asset retirement obligation — Eatontown facility (1) 9,948 9,948
Reimbursement under tissue supply agreements (2) 24,000 7,300 14,100 2.600

$76,383 313,039 323,190  $7.418  $32.736

(1) Represents the future value of the Eatontown asset retirement obligation as of December 31, 2005. This asset
retirement obligation will be accreted from its current value as of December 31, 2005 of $2. 2 million to its
future value over the next twenty years.

(2) Represents the minimum reimbursement to be made under our agreements with MTF and CTS for their services
of donor recovery and donor eligibility related to the allograft bone tissue to be supplied to us over the current
term of the related agreement.

Based on our current projections and estimates for 2006, we expect to continue to make investments in our
business to support our strategic initiatives and future programs, which will reduce our currently available cash
balances. We believe that our currently available cash and cash equivalents and anticipated future cash flow from
operations will be sufficient to meet our forecasted cash needs in 2006. Our future liquidity and capital
requirements will depend upon numerous factors, including:

* the progress of our product development programs and the need and associated costs relating to

regulatory approvals, if any, which may be needed to commercialize some of our products under
development; and
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* the resources we devote to the development, manufacture and marketing of our services and products.

We may seek additional funding to meet the needs of our long-term strategic plans. We can provide no
assurance that such additional funds will be available, or if available, that such funds will be available on favorable
terms.

Recent Accounting Developments

In December, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R that is effective beginning January 1, 2006. SFAS
No. 123R addresses all forms of share-based payment (“SBP”) awards, including shares issued under employee
stock purchase plans, stock options, restricted stock and stock appreciations rights and will require us to expense
SBP awards as non-cash compensation costs for SBP transactions measured at fair value. We expect adoption of
this pronouncement in 2006 will not have a material impact on our results of operations.

In May, 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections™. SFAS No.
154 addresses the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. It requires
retrospective application to prior periods financial statements of changes in accounting principles unless a
pronouncement giving rise to a change in accounting principle includes specific transition provisions, in which case
those provisions should be followed. This guidance must be implemented for accounting changes and corrections of
errors made in fiscal years beginning after December:15, 2005.

Impact of Inflation and Foreign Currency Exchange Fluctuations

The results of operations for the periods discussed have not been materially affected by inflation. We are
subject to foreign currency fluctuations for material changes in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro.
As our foreign operations continue to grow and represent a larger percentage of our consolidated revenues and
profits, foreign currency translation adjustments will impact our operating results to a greater extent.

The exchange rate as of December 31, 2005 was $1.18 U.S. dollars to one Euro compared to an exchange
rate of $1.36 U.S. dollars to one Euro as of December 31, 2004. The average exchange rate for the year ended
December 31, 2005 was $1.24 U.S. dollars to one Euro compared to an average exchange rate for the year ended
December 31, 2004 of $1.25 U.S. dollars to one Euro. A 10% change in the average exchange rate, based on actual
results for 2005, would impact revenues by approximately $1.3 million and net income/loss by less than $100,000.

In fourth quarter 2003, as a result of a decision to utilize excess cash flow, if any, generated by our French
subsidiary to repay the remaining outstanding balance of its intercompany debt, in accordance with SFAS No. 52,
“Foreign Currency Translation”, we recognized the impact of foreign currency translation gains and losses on the
outstanding balance of the intercompany debt in our results of operations. Foreign currency translation losses of $.8
million were recognized in other income (expense) in 2005 and foreign currency translation gains of $.5 million
were recognized in other income (expense) for each of 2004 and 2003, related to the impact of exchange rates
between the U.S. dollar and the Euro.

On July 7, 2005, the Board of Directors declared $5.5 million of intercompany loans between the domestic
company and OST Developpement S.A., our French subsidiary, to be permanent debt requiring no principal
payments on such intercompany loans for the foreseeable future. As a result, and pursuant to SFAS No. 52 from July
7, 2005 forward that portion of the intercompany.debt will no longer be subject to the effects of variations in
currency  exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro. The remaining outstanding balance under
intercompany loans between the domestic company and OST Developpement will continue to be subject to
variations in currency exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro.
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Future translation gains and losses may have a material impact on our results of operations in the event of
significant changes in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the Euro, although the impact of such gains and
losses should not have any impact on consolidated cash flows.

Litigation

We are involved in various legal proceedings involving product liability and other matters and claims. For
a complete discussion of these matters see Note 16 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.” It is possible
that our results of operations or liquidity and capital resources could be adversely affected by the ultimate outcome
of the pending litigation or as a result of the costs of contesting such lawsuits.

Market Risk

We. are exposed to interest rate risk. Changes in interest rates affect interest income earned on cash, cash
equivalents and short-term investments. We do not enter into derivative transactions related to our cash or cash
equivalents. Accordingly, we are subject to changes in interest rates. Based on our December 31, 2005 cash and
cash equivalents, a 1% change in interest rates would impact net income/loss by less than $150,000.

The value of the U.S. dollar affects our financial results. Changes in exchange rates may positively or
negatively affect revenues, gross margins, operating expenses and net income. We do not maintain hedging
programs to mitigate the potential exposures of exchange rate risk. Accordingly, our results of operations are
adversely affected by the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against currencies, primarily the Euro, in which we sell
products and services or a weakening exchange rate against currencies in which we incur costs. Based on the
operating results of our foreign operations for the year ended December 31, 2005, a 10% change in the exchange
rates would impact our net income/loss by less than $100,000. :

Because of the foregomg factots, as well as other variables affectmg our operating results past financial
performance should not be considered a reliable indicator of future performance.
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Common Stock Market

Our Common Stock is listed on the Nasdaq National Market® under the trading symbol "OSTE". The
following table sets forth the high and low sale prices for the Common Stock for each of the fiscal quarters during
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 based on transaction data as reported by the Nasdaq National
Market®. : '

2005 2004
High Low High Low
First Quarter ’ - $5.52 $3.51 $9.81 $5.82
Second Quarter $3.99 $2.45 $7.61 $5.67
Third Quarter $6.25 $3.63 $6.52 $3.52
Fourth Quarter $6.00 $2.76 $5.83 $3.58

As of March 17, 2006, there were 310 holders of record of Osteotech Common Stock. We believe that
there are approximately 4,300 beneficial owners of our Common Stock.

We have never paid a cash dividend and do not anticipate the payment of cash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We expect to retain future earnings to finance our growth. The declaration of dividends in the future will
remain within the discretion of our Board of Directors, which will review our dividend policy from time to time:

Publications

We maintain a- website at www.osteotech.com to provide information to the general public and our
shareholders on our tissue forms, products, resources'and services, along with general information on.Osteotech and
its management, career opportunities, financial results and press releases. Copies of our most recent Annual Report
on Form 10-K, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or our other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, our 2005 Annual Report, can be obtained, free of charge, from our Investor Relations
Department by calling 732-542-2800, through an e-mail “request from our website at
www.osteotech.com/finrequest.htm, through the SEC’s website by clicking the direct link from our website at
www.osteotech.convfinrequest.htm or directly from the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. Qur website and the
information contained therein or connected thereto are not intended to be incorporated into this Annual Report.
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OSTEOTECH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2005 2004
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,484 $ 13,391
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of
$1,131 in 2005 and $1,468 in 2004 14,879 14,795
Deferred processing costs 28,805 36,049
Inventories 1,278 1,202
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,438 5,595
Total current assets 61,884 71,032
Property, plant and equipment, net 39,962 37,447
Goodwill 1,669 1,669
Other assets 7,507 6,256
Total assets $111,022 $116,404

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 16,320 $ 11,532

Current maturities of capital lease obligation 655
Current maturities of long-term debt 2,661
Total current liabilities 16,975 14,193

Capital lease obligation 15,603
Long-term debt 10,076
Other liabilities 7,689 740
Total liabilities 40,267 25,009

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares
authorized; no shares issued or outstanding
Common stock, $.01 par value; 70,000,000 shares
authorized; issued and outstanding 17,259,964 shares in 2005

and 17,175,474 shares in 2004 173 172
Additional paid-in capital 64,915 64,482
Accumulated other comprehensive income 793 750
Retained earnings 4,874 25,991

Total stockholders' equity 70,755 91,395
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $111,022 $116,404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OSTEOTECH, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the year ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Net revenues:
Service ‘ $91,901 $ 85,120 $ 87,759
Product ‘ 1,406 3,457 6,674
93,307 88,577 94,433
Cost of services 60,945 49,686 37,034
Cost of products 500 2,816 5,037
61,445 52,502 42,071
Gross profit 31,862 36,075 52,362
Marketing, selling, and general and administrative ‘ 46,909 38,127 37,786
Research and development : 5,021 4,578 3,944
51,930 42,705 41,730
Income from litigation settlements 7,500
Operating income (loss) ‘ (20,068) (6,630) 18,132
Other income (expense):
Interest income 529 269 144
Interest expense 1 (1,303) (646) (1,107
Gain on sale of intellectual property : 575
Other (790) 302 577
(1,564) 500 (386)
Income (loss) before income taxes | (21,632) (6,130) 17,746
Income tax provision {benefit) : (515) (847) 6,879
Net income (loss) $(21,117) $ (5,283) $10,867
Earnings (loss) per share: .
Basic i $ (1.23) $ (3D $ .64
Diluted $ (1.23) $ (3D 3 .62
Shares used in computing earnings (loss) per share: .
Basic : - 17,195,868 17,146,127 17,059,495
Diluted ‘ 17,195,868 17,146,127 17,520,959

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OSTEOTECH, INC. AND UBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(dollars in thousands)

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

Accumulated
Other
Additional  Comprehensive " Total
Common Stock Paid-In Income Retained - Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Earnings - Equity
Stockholders’ Equity, January 1, 2003 17,001,372 $170 $ 63,368 5 78 $20,407 3 84,023
Net income 10,867 10,867
Currency translation adjustments 527 527
Total comprehensive income 11,394
Exercise of stock options 80,437 1 - 375 376
Common stock issued pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan 35,911 305 305
Tax benefits related to stock options 122 122
Stockholders’ Equity, December 31,2003 17,117,720 171 64,170 605 31,274 96,220
Net loss (5,283 (5,283)
Currency translation adjustments 145 145
Total comprehensive loss (5,138)
Exercise of stock options 22,875 104 104
Common stock issued pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan 34,879 1 191 192
Tax benefits related to stock options ' 17 17
Stockholders’ Equity, December 31,2004 17,175,474 172 64,482 750 25,991 91,395
Net loss (21,117 (21,117)
Currency translation adjustments 43 43
Total comprehensive loss (21,074)
Exercise of stock options 47,575 1 182 183
Common stock issued pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan 36,915 161 161
Stock-based compensation expense 90 90
Stockholders’ Equity, December 31,2005 17,259 964 $ 173 $ 64,915 $ 793 $ 4,874 '$ 70,755

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. -
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OSTEOTECH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net income (loss) ‘ $(21,117) $(5,283) 3 10,867

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities: ‘

Depreciation and amortization ‘ 5,722 8,343 8,498
Non-cash portion of impairment charges 4,353
Deferred income taxes (12) 2,024 2,230
Stock-based compensation expense 90
Provision for tissue inventories 790
Net provision for metal spinal implant systems 994
Gain on sale of intellectual property ‘ (575)
Income tax benefit related to stock options 17 122
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 277 494 (2,978)
Deferred processing costs 3,076 (6,878) (13,459)
Inventories (76) 1,421 1,392
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ‘ 2,058 (2,977) 2,732
Note receivable from patent litigation
Settlement ‘ 1,000 1,000 (5,000)
Accounts payable and other liabilities 6,553 (480) 380
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ‘ (1,639) 2,453 4,784
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Proceeds from sale of land and building : 16,500

Capital expenditures (2,115) (1,803) (1,571)

Proceeds from sale of investments ‘ 3,948

Proceeds from sale of intellectual property 575

Other, net 162 (335) 516
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 14,547 (1,563) 2,893
Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 344 296 681

Principal payments on capital lease obligation (242)

Principal payments on long-term debt (12,737) (3,186) (2,660)
Net cash used in financing activities (12,635) (2,890) (1,979)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (180) 65 (412)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . 93 (1,935) 5,286
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13,391 15,326 10,040
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $13,484 313,391 315,326

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OSTEOTECH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Osteotech, Inc. (the "Company" or “Osteotech™) develops technologies and products to efficiently and effectively
utilize bone and bone connective tissue (“allograft bone tissue™). Utilizing the Company’s expertise in
musculoskeletal tissue technology, the Company provides services and develops, markets and sells products to
the orthopaedic, neurological, oral/maxillofacial, and general surgery markets around the world. The Company’s
primary operation is engaged in the processing of allograft bone tissue used for transplantation. For the
Company’s proprietary tissue products, including Grafton® DBM and Graftech® Bio-implants, the Company
and/or its clients generally distribute these tissue forms to hospitals and surgeons.

The Company has two primary operating segments: the Demineralized Bone Matrix (DBM) Segment (the
“DBM Segment™) and the Base Allograft Bone Tissue Segment (the “Base Tissue Segment”). In addition to
these two primary segments, the Company processes, markets and distributes bovine bone tissue products
outside of the United States and marketed and distributed metal spinal implant products up through June 30,
2004 (See Note 4, “Gains and Charges”).

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates the estimates and may adjust them based upon the
latest information available. These estimates generally include those related to product returns, bad debts,
inventories including purchase commitments, deferred processing costs including reserves for rework, excess
and obsolescence, long-lived assets, income taxes, contingencies and litigation. The Company bases the
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Company believes the following critical accounting policies affect the more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

¢ The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of its customers to make required payments. [f the financial condition of the Company’s
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required. Changes in estimates of collection risk related to accounts receivable can
result in decreases or increases in current period operating costs.

¢ The Company records reductions to revenue for estimated returns based upon historical experience. If
future returns are less than historical experience, reduction in estimated reserves would increase
revenue. Alternatively, should returns exceed historical experience, additional allowances would be
required, which would reduce revenue.

*  The Company writes down inventory and deferred processing costs for estimated excess, obsolescence,
or unmarketable products and allograft bone tissue forms equal to the difference between cost and the
estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. Excess
and obsolescence could occur from numerous factors, including, but not limited to, the competitive
nature of the market, technological change, expiration and changes in surgeon preference. If actual
market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional write-downs may
be required, including provisions to reduce inventory and deferred processing costs to net realizable
value. In each period, the Company also assesses its production activity in relationship to historical
experience and normal capacity, and evaluates the need to reflect processing costs as either period
costs or as a component of deferred processing costs. In periods where the Company’s actual
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processing activities are less than historical experience/normal capacity, the Company charges an
appropriate portion of its processing costs directly to cost of services in the consolidated statements of
operations. In addition, the Company provides reserves, if any, for the difference between its
contractual purchase commitments and its projected purchasing patterns based upon maintenance of
adequate inventory levels and forecasted revenues. If actual revenue is less favorable than those
forecasted by management, additional reserves may be required; alternatively, if revenue is stronger
than forecasted by management, such reserves would be reduced.

The Company records an asset retirement obligation when a cost to retire an asset is incurred or when
the Company determines a cost will be incurred in the future to retire an asset. The asset retirement
obligation is accrued at its estimated fair value with a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of
the related long-lived asset, if appropriate. The Company determines the amount of the asset
retirement obligation based upon a number of assumptions requiring professional judgment and make
adjustments to the asset retirement obligation recorded based on the passage or time and revisions to
either the timing or the amount of the ‘original estimate of undiscounted cash flows related to the
retirement of the asset. ‘

The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized. While the Company has considered future taxable income, in the event
that the Company would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of the net
recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase income in the period such
determination was made. Likewise, should the Company determine that it would not be able to realize
all or part of a net deferred tax asset in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would be
charged to income in the period such determination was made.

The Company accrues current and future tax liabilities based upon levels of taxable income, tax
planning strategies and assessments of the timing of taxability of the tax attributes. While the
Company has considered current tax laws in establishing tax liabilities, in the event the Company was
to settle the tax liabilities for less than amounts accrued, the Company would increase income in the
period such determination was made. Should the Company determine it would cost more to settle the
tax liabilities, an adjustment would be charged to income thus reducing income in that period.

Litigation is subject to many uncertainties and management is unable to predict the outcome of the
pending litigation. When the Company is reasonably able to determine the probable minimum or
ultimate liability, if any, which may result from any of the pending litigation, the Company will record
a provision for our best estimate of such liability, and if appropriate, will record a benefit for the
amounts covered by insurance. If the outcome or resolution of the pending litigation is for amounts
greater than accrued, an adjustment will be charged to income in the period the determination is made.
Alternatively, should the outcome or resolution be for less than accrued, the Company would increase
income in the period the determination is made.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries.
All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated.

Revenue Recognition

The Company principally derives revenue from allograft bone tissue processing services, service fees related to
the distribution of allograft bone tissue grafts and the sale of other non-allograft tissue products. Revenues from
the sale of products and service fees associated with allograft bone tissue, net of trade discounts and allowances,
are recognized once delivery has occurred provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price
is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Delivery is considered to have occurred when
risk of loss has transferred to the Company’s clients or customers, usually upon shipment to such customers or
clients, except for consigned inventory, when delivery is considered to have occurred at the time that the
allograft bone tissue or non-allograft tissue product is consumed by the customer.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, when
purchased, to be cash equivalents. Investments with maturities in excess of three months but less than one year
are classified as short-term investments and are stated at cost, net of any unamortized premiums or discounts,
which approximates fair value.

Deferred Processing Costs

Deferred processing costs are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined under the first-in, first-
out method. Costs related to allograft bone tissue processing are deferred until the processed allograft bone
tissue is released from final quality assurance testing and shipped to clients or customers, except for consigned
inventory, whose costs are deferred until the allograft bone tissue is consumed by the customer.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined under the first-in, first-out method.
Inventories consist of supplies and raw materials, which principally support the processing of allograft bone
tissue in the Company’s two primary operating segments, and finished goods, which principally support the
Company’s other product lines.

Long-Lived Assets

Impairment — The Company continually monitors events and circumstances that could indicate carrying
amounts of long-lived assets, including property, plant, equipment and intangible assets, may not be
recoverable. When such events or changes in circumstances occur we assess recoverability of long-lived assets,
other than goodwill, by determining whether the carrying value of such assets will be recovered through
undiscounted expected future cash flows. If the total of the undiscounted future cash flows is less than the
carrying amount of those assets, we recognize an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amount
over the fair value of the asset, or discounted estimated future cash flows if fair value is not readily
determinable. Goodwill is tested for impairment, based initially on discounted cash flows, on an annual basis as
of January 1, and between annual tests if indictors of potential impairment exist.

The estimates of future cash flows involve considerable management judgment and are based upon assumptions
about expected future operating performance. Assumptions used in these forecasts are consistent with internal
planning. The actual cash flows could differ from management’s estimates due to changes in business
conditions, operating performance and economic conditions.
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Property, plant and equipment — Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Assets under capital leases
are recorded at the lower of the fair market value of the asset or the present value of the future minimum loan
payments. Assets subject to asset retirement obligations are recorded at cost plus the initial value, or any
appropriate revisions thereof, of the asset retirement obligation. Major renewals and betterments are capitalized
while maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Interest, if any, is capitalized in connection with the
construction of major facilities. The capitalized interest is recorded as part of the underlying assets and is
amortized over each respective asset’s estimated useful life. The cost of assets under capital leases and
leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated
useful life of the asset. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Building and improvements 10 to 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 10 years
Computer hardware and software 5 years
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 5 years
Spinal instruments for allograft tissues ‘ 3 years

When depreciable assets are retired or sold, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the consolidated statement of operations.

Goodwill — The Company’s goodwill arose in the acquisition of its French subsidiary in 1999 and relates
mainly to the Company’s activities in the sale and distribution of allograft bone tissue products. No impairment
of goodwill has been identified during any of the periods presented.

Other intangible assets — The Company’s other intangible assets, which principally represent patents and patent
applications, are recorded as cost. Patents are amortized over their estimated useful lives ranging from five to
ten years. Patent application costs will commence amortization upon the grant of the patent or expensed if the
application is rejected, withdrawn or abandoned.

Grants

As part of the Company’s efforts to foster the development of new technologies, tissue donations and expansion
of tissue supply, the Company may, from time-to-time, provide grants to educational and other organizations.
Grants are expensed in marketing, selling and general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of operations when the Company makes a fixed and determinable commitment to fund a specific
grant. As of December 31, 2005, the Company does not have any grant commitments.

Research and Development

Research and development costs, which principally relate to internal costs for the development of new
technologies, processes and products, are expensed as incurred.

Stock Options

The Company accounts for stock option awards in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related interpretations (“APB No. 25”). Accordingly, no
compensation expense has been recognized for the issuance of stock options, since all options have been
granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.
The Company has adopted the “disclosure only” provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
(“SFAS™) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation (“SFAS No. 123). Pro forma information
regarding net income/loss and earnings/loss per share is required by SFAS No. 123, and has been determined as
if the Company accounted for its stock options on a fair value basis.

In December, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004),

“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”) that is effective beginning January 1, 2006. SFAS No. 123R
addresses all forms of share-based payment (“SBP”) awards, including shares issued under employee stock
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purchase plans, stock options, restricted stock and stock appreciations rights and will require the Company to
expense SBP awards as non-cash compensation costs for SBP transactions measured at fair value.

In anticipation of the effective date of SFAS No. 123R and to provide additional incentive to our employees, the
Board of Directors approved the following actions: ’

¢ In December, 2004 approved the accelerated vesting of all unvested stock options with an exercise
price greater than $5.35, the closing price of our common stock on December 16, 2004. Stock options
representing 615,352 shares of common stock were vested immediately.

® In June, 2005 approved the accelerated vesting of all unvested stock options with an exercise price
greater than $3.33, the closing price of our common stock on June 9, 2005. Stock options representing
432,850 shares of common stock were vested immediately.

® In December, 2005 approved immediate vesting of the Company’s annual stock option grant issuances.
Stock options representing 222,900 shares of common stock were issued and vested immediately on
December 15, 2005.

As a result of these Board actions, the Company eliminated substantially all of the potential impact to its future
results of operations related to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, which is effective January 1, 2006. In
accordance with the provisions of APB No. 25, the Company did not recognize any compensation costs in its
consolidated statement of operations related to any of these Board actions, since the exercise price of these
options were either equal to or greater than the market price on the date of each respective action. However,
compensation costs, net of tax, associated with these actions and determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123
are included in the following table in addition to the amounts that would have been reflected had these Board
actions not occurred in compliance with the “disclosure only” provisions of SFAS No. 123. The additional
compensation costs, net of tax, related to these Board actions were $1,066 (December, 2004), $1,133 (June,
2005) and $645 (December, 2005).

In addition, in 2005 the Board of Directors approved amendments to the stock option grants of three former
executive officers in contemplation of their retirement or resignation, as follows:

¢ In June, 2005, the Board of Directors approved amending all of the option agreements issued to
Richard W. Bauer, Osteotech’s former Chief Executive Officer, to provide that all of his options shall
remain exercisable through the original expiration date of such option agreements, notwithstanding any
provisions in such option agreements which would have limited the exercise period of such options
following the termination of Mr. Bauer’s employment with Osteotech.

® In August, 2005, the Board of Directors approved amending all of the option agreements issued to
Michael J. Jeffries, Osteotech’s former Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, to
provide that all of his options shall remain exercisable through the original expiration date of such
option agreements, notwithstanding any provisions in such option agreements which would have
limited the exercise period of such options following the termination of Mr. Jeffries’ employment with
Osteotech.

¢ In December, 2005, in connection with a Separation Agreement between Osteotech and James L.
Russell, Ph.D., Osteotech’s former Executive Vice President and Chief Scientific Officer, the Board of
Directors approved amending all of the option agreements issued to Mr. Russell to provide that all of
his options shall remain exercisable through the later of the original expiration date of such option
agreement or two years from the date of Mr. Russell’s departure from Osteotech on November 30,
2005.

In accordance with the provisions of APB No. 25, the Company did not recognize any compensation costs in its
consolidated statement of operations related to this change to Mr. Bauer’s stock options, since the exercise price
of Mr. Bauer’s stock options were all greater than the market price of the Company’s common stock on June 9,
2005; recognized non-cash compensation costs of $42 in its consolidated statement of operations related to the
change in Mr. Jeffries’ stock options, since several of Mr. Jeffries’ stock options had exercise prices less than
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the market price of the Company’s common stock on August 3, 2005; and recognized non-cash compensation
costs of $48 in its consolidated statement of operations related to the change in Mr. Russell’s stock options,
since several of Mr. Russell’s stock options had exercise prices less than the market price of the Company’s
common stock on December 27, 2005. In addition, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, the
changes to the stock options agreements for Messrs. Bauer, Jeffries and Russell resulted in compensation costs,
net of tax, of $288, $291 and $129, respectively, which will be included in the following table in accordance
with the “disclosure only” provisions of SFAS No. 123.

Pro forma information regarding earings/loss per share and has been determined as if the Company accounted
for its stock options on a fair value basis. For purposes of the pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of
the options is amortized on a straight-line basis to expense over the options’ vesting period, or such other period
to match the vesting period or adjusted vesting period determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003

Net income (loss) — reported $(21,117) $(5,283) $10,867
Stock compensation expense included in net

income (loss) — reported 90
Impact on net income (loss) related to stock-

based employee compensation expense,

net of tax in 2004 and 2003 1 $ (2,812) $ (1,942) s (29
Net income (loss) — Pro forma : $(23,839) $(7,225) $ 9,938
Eamings (loss) per share '

As reported: :
Basic $ (1.23) $ (31 $ .64
Diluted $ (1.23) $ (3D $ .62

Pro forma:

Basic § (1.39) § (42) § .58
Diluted § (1.39) $ (42) § 58

The fair value for the option grants was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Option-Pricing
Model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2005 2004 2003
Expected life (years) 5 S 5
Risk free interest rate ‘ 3.99% 3.47% 2.88%
Volatility factor 70.00% 82.00% 86.00%
Dividend yield . 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Translation of Foreign Currency

In general, assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated at rates of exchange in effect at the close of
the period, with the resulting translation gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income,
which s a separate component of stockholders' equity. Revenues and expenses are translated at the weighted
average exchange rates during the period. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in other
income (expense).

In fourth quarter 2003, as a result of a decision to utilize excess cash flow, if any, generated by the Company’s
French subsidiary to repay the remaining outstanding balance of its intercompany debt, in accordance with
SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency 'Franslatiod”, the Company recognized the impact of foreign currency
translation gains and losses on the outstanding balance of the intercompany debt in the Company’s results of
operations. A foreign currency translation loss of $783 was recognized in other income (expense) for the year
ended December 31, 2005 and foreign currency translation gains of $454 and $510 were recognized in other
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income (expense) in the consolidated statement of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, related to the impact of exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro.

On July 7, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors declared $5,500 of intercompany loans between the
domestic company and OST Developpement S.A., the Company’s French subsidiary, to be permanent debt,
requiring no principal payments on such intercompany loans for the foreseeable future. As a result, and pursuant
to SFAS No. 52, from July 7, 2005 forward that portion of the intercompany debt will no longer be subject to
the effects of variations in currency exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro. The remaining
outstanding balance (84,029 as of December 31, 2005) of intercompany loans between the domestic company
and OST Developpement S.A. will continue to be subject to the recognition of variations in currency exchange
rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro, and such variations may have a material impact on the Company’s
results of operations, although the impact of such gains and losses should not have any impact on the
Company’s consolidated cash flows.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company invests the majority of its excess cash in U.S. Government-backed securities and investment
grade commercial paper of major U.S. corporations. The Company does not believe it is exposed to any
significant credit risk on its cash equivalents.

The Company provides credit, in the normal course of business, to its clients and customers. In addition, the
Company performs on-going evaluations of its clients” and customers’ financial condition, but generally does
not require collateral in support of available credit. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts
and charges actual losses to the allowance when incurred. In 2005, the Company has one customer, the
Musculoskeletal Transplant Foundation (“MTF”), which accounted for 27% of consolidated revenues and 20%
of consolidated outstanding accounts receivable as of December 31, 2005. In 2004 and 2003, the Company had
two customers who together accounted for 42% and 49% of consolidated revenues, and 32% of consolidated
outstanding accounts receivable as of December 31, 2004. In January, 2005, one of these major customers,
MTF, acquired the assets of the allograft tissue banking operation of the other major customer, the American
Red Cross Tissue Services (fARC™). See Note 16, “Commitments and Contingencies — Processing and Tissue
Supply Agreements”, for a more detailed discussion of the Company’s arrangements with MTF.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of financial instruments, including short-term investments, accounts receivable, notes
receivable, accounts payable and other accrued expenses, approximate their fair values. Short-term investments
are designated as available-for-sale, are of investment grade quality securities and are not subject to significant
market risk.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts within the financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 20035
presentation.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No: 123R that is effective beginning January 1, 2006. SFAS No.
123R addresses all forms of SBP awards, including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans, stock
options, restricted stock and stock appreciations rights and will require the Company to expense SBP awards as
non-cash compensation costs for SBP transactions measured at fair value. The Company expects adoption of
this pronouncement in 2006 will not have a material impact on its results of operations.

In May, 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections”. SFAS No. 154
addresses the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. It requires
retrospective application to prior periods financial statements of changes in accounting principles unless a
pronouncement giving rise to a change in accounting principle includes specific transition provisions, in which
case those provisions should be followed. This guidance must be implemented for accounting changes and
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.

GAINS AND CHARGES

2005 Gains and Charges

Reserves for Obsolescence and Expiration

During the second quarter of 2005, the Company increased its reserves for tissue inventories obsolescence and
expiration by $790, which was included in cost, of services in the consolidated statements of operations. This
additional reserve was mostly due to a dispute with Bone Bank Allograft (“BBA™), which prevents us from
utilizing BBA labeled tissue. In February, 2006, the Company and BBA settled this outstanding dispute.

Severance and Retirement Charges

In 2005, the Company entered into retirement agreements with Richard W. Bauer, the Company’s former Chief
Executive Officer, and Michael J. Jeffries, the Company’s former Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Secretary. Messrs. Bauer and Jeffries retired from the Company on December 31, 2005. In
addition, in November, 2005 certain employees were either terminated or resigned from the Company. In 2005,
the Company recorded pre-tax charges of $1,950 in marketing, selling and general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statements of operations related to these events, including non-cash charges of $90 related to
amendments of certain stock option agreements. See Note 16, “Commitments and Contingencies — Retirement
Agreements”, for a more detailed discussion of the Company’s arrangements with Messrs. Bauer and Jeffries.

Unsolicited Takeover Attempt and Investment Banking Fees

On June 30, 2005, MTF made an unsolicited offer to acquire the Company for $6.25 per common share. In
response to the unsolicited offer, the Company’s Board of Directors considered the proposed offer and informed
MTF on August 30, 2005 that the proposal was inadequate and not in the best interest of the Company’s
shareholders. MTF, in a letter to the Company dated October 17, 2005, withdrew its offer. In 2005, as a result
of the unsolicited takeover attempt by MTF, the Company incurred professional fees for financial, legal and
other advisory services of approximately $1,906, which is included in marketing, selling, and general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. In December, 2005, the Company
terminated an agreement with its investment banker for advisory services, which required the payment of all
amounts still outstanding under the agreement of $800.

2004 Gains and Charges

Gain/Provision for Metal Spinal Implant Systems

As a result of an assessment of its metal spinal implant business in the first quarter of 2004, the Company
announced that it would cease marketing and distributing all metal spinal implant product lines by the end of the
second quarter of 2004. In the first quarter of 2004, the Company recorded a charge of $1,998 to cost of
products in the consolidated statements of operations to reduce metal spinal implant inventory and
instrumentation to estimated net realizable value. The Company ceased distribution of all metal spinal implant
product lines in June, 2004.

45



46

OSTEOTECH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

In the third quarter of 2004, the Company settled its litigation with Alphatec Manufacturing, Inc. (“Alphatec™)
for $600 and the return to Alphatec of all inventory held by the Company that was manufactured by Alphatec.
In 2002, the Company had recorded a provision of $1,079 for the penalty associated with the expected shortfall
under the purchase commitment in year two of the distribution agreement. In 2002 and the first quarter of 2004,
the Company had previously fully reserved all of the Alphatec metal spinal implant inventory. As a result of
the settlement, the Company reversed the excess purchase commitment reserve of $479 in the third quarter of
2004, which is reflected in cost of products in the consolidated statements of operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company sold all remaining inventory and instrumentation and all intellectual
property related to its Ovation™ Polyaxial System to an unrelated private company for $1,100 in cash. The
Company recorded a pre-tax gain on the sale of intellectual property in the amount of $575, which is reflected
in other income in the consolidated statements of operations and reversed 3525 of the aforementioned $1,998
charge recorded in the first quarter of 2004.

Severance — Sales and Marketing Reorganization

In the first quarter of 2004, the Company reorganized its sales and marketing departments. As a result, the
Company recorded a pre-tax charge in marketing, selling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations of $650, principally for the severance costs associated with the departure
of the executive officer responsible for these areas and two other employees.

Long-Lived Asset Impairment

Throughout 2004, the Company utilized the processing environment in its former processing facility in
Shrewsbury (the “Shrewsbury Facility”) to perform certain aspects related to its allograft tissue processing
operation. This processing environment was also utilized as a back up for the Company’s current processing
operation in Eatontown (the “Eatontown Facility”). In December, 2004, the processing activities performed in
the Shrewsbury Facility were either moved to the Eatontown Facility or were determined to no longer be
utilized in the processing of allograft bone tissue. As a result of this action and due to the high cost associated
with maintaining the processing environment in the Shrewsbury Facility, the Company decided to shutdown
this processing environment. The Company assessed its ability to recover the remaining investment in the
processing environment in the Shrewsbury Facility, and in December, 2004, with the approval of the
Company’s Board of Directors, the Company determined there was an impairment of the assets associated with
the Shrewsbury Facility processing environment. As a result of this assessment and resulting impairment, the
Company will dismantle and dispose of this processing environment, In the fourth quarter of 2004, the
Company recorded a non-cash pre-tax charge of $4,353 related to the remaining net book value associated with
this processing environment and recorded a charge for an asset retirement obligation of $1,500 related to the
estimated costs to dismantle and dispose of these assets. Both charges are reflected in cost of services in the
consolidated statements of operations. See Note 12, “Asset Retirement Obligations”, for a reassessment of this
asset retirement obligation in 2005,

2003 Gains and Charges

Patent Litigation Settlement Gain

In fourth quarter 2003, the Company received an initial $2,500 payment, a $5,000 interest bearing promissory
note and a $5,000 letter of credit collateralizing the promissory note pursuant to a definitive $7,500 agreement
entered into in May, 2003 to settle certain patent litigation. Accordingly, the Company recognized a pretax gain
of $7,500 from this settlement. Such gain is related to the Company’s DBM Segment and is reflected as income
from litigation settlement in the consolidated statements of operations. In 2005 and 2004, the Company
received the amounts due under the settlement agreement of $1,000 in each year.

Reduction in Workforce

On September 24, 2003, the Company implemented a selective reduction in its workforce, which affected all
domestic operational areas of the Company, except for the sales force, and resulted in the immediate elimination
of 22 positions. As a consequence, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $379 for severance costs in the
third quarter of 2003.
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5. DEFERRED PROCESSING COSTS

Deferred processing costs consist of the following at December 31:

2005 2004
Unprocessed donor tissue to be

distributed by the Company $ 8,896 $ 9,259
Tissue in process ‘ 4,621 11,740

Implantable donor tissue to be distributed
by the Company ‘ 14,492 12,841
Implantable donor tissue held for clients ' 796 2,209
' $28,805 $36,049

Unprocessed donor tissue to be distributed by the Company represents the. value of such allograft bone tissue
expected to be processed by the Company in 2006. As of December 31, 2005, unprocessed donor tissue to be
distributed by the Company expected to be processed in periods subsequent to 2006 of $3,378 is reflected in
other assets. :

6. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following at December 31:

2005 2004

Supplies ‘ $ 194 3 237
Raw materials 813 718
Finished goods : 271 247
‘ $1,278 $ 1,202

7. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following at December 31:

2005 2004

Income tax receivable $ 521 $ 3,172
Deferred tax assets : 585
Receivable from patent litigation settlement 1,000 1,000
Other 1,917 838
$ 3,438 $ 5,595
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at December 31:

2005 2004
Land $ $ 811
Building and improvements 14,939
Property under capital lease 18,685
Machinery and equipment 38,556 38,436
Computer hardware and software 5,483 5,592
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 6,222 5,937
Spinal instruments 2,083 1,527
Leasehold improvements 6,822 6,476
Construction in progress 179 20
78,030 73,738
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization (38,068) (36,291)
$39,962 $37,447

On August 8, 2005, the Company completed the sale of its principal processing facility located in Eatontown,
New Jersey to an unrelated third party for $16,500 in cash. The Company also entered into an agreement to
lease back the processing facility. The lease agreement is for an initial term of 20 years with two five-year
renewal options at the Company’s election. Lease payments will be $2,326 annually for the first seven years of
the agreement, $1,460 annually for years eight through twelve, an annual rental rate to be determined at the time
with a minimum rate of $1,460 and a maximurn annual rate of $1,533 for years thirteen through seventeen, and
thereafter at an annual rental rate to be determined at the time with a minimum rate equal to the actual rental
rate in year seventeen and a maximum annual rate of $1,610 for years eighteen through twenty. The Company
retained ownership of all property and equipment, including improvements, directly related to the operation of
the Company’s business. The transaction has been recorded as a capital lease, with the resulting gain of
approximately $3,660 from the sale of the facility deferred and amortized in proportion to the amortization of
the leased assets. The deferred gain is reflected as a component of long-term liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. Amortization of the deferred gain is included as a component of depreciation and
amortization in the consolidated statements of operations and was $72 for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The Company utilized a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the processing facility to repay all outstanding
bank debt as of August 8, 2005, of $10,963. All remaining proceeds of approximately $5,323, net of transaction
costs of approximately $214, arising from this transaction will be utilized for general corporate purposes.

Maintenance and repairs expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, was $2,350, $2,590
and 32,669, respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense related to property, plant and equipment,
including property under capital lease, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $5,398,
$7,232 and $8,236, respectively.
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9. OTHER ASSETS

10.

Other assets consist of the following at December 31:

'

2005 2004
Issued patents ~ at cost ! $ 1,562 $ 1,544
Less accumulated amortization : (1,208) (1,136)
354 408
Patent applications pending 1,208 1,302
Unprocessed donor tissue to be distributed by
the Company (expected to be processed
after 2006) 3,378
Long-term portion of receivable from ;
patent litigation settlement 2,000 3,000
Other ‘ 477 1,546
$ 7,507 $ 6,256

Patent application costs aggregating $256 in 2005, $715 in 2004 and $167 in 2003 have been charged to
marketing, selling and general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations since the
related patent applications have been withdrawn or abandoned. Amortization expense for these intangibles was
$140, $396 and $262 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively and is included in
marketing, selling and general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations.
Ammortization expense for the next five years is: $124 in 2006, $106 in 2007, $77 in 2008, $37'in 2009 and $10
in 2010.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following at December 31:

2005 2004

Trade accounts payable $ 3,447 $ 2,828
Accrued tissue recovery fees 5,123 1,144
Accrued compensation ‘ 613 751
Accrued professional fees ‘ 1,869 790
Accrued commissions payable to non-employees 1,227 1,320
Amounts due under retirement/severance agreements 1,219 109
Asset retirement obligation 726 1,500
Other accrued liabilities 2,096 3,090
$16,320 . $11,532
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LEASING TRANSACTIONS

The Company leases office and production facilities, including the Company’s principal processing facility, and
equipment under various operating and capital lease agreements, which have non-cancelable terms expiring at
various intervals through August, 2025. Most of the leases for office and production facilities include renewal
provisions at the Company’s option. Additionally, certain of the leases contain fair value purchase options.

Future minimum capital and operating lease payments at December 31, 2005 are as follows:

Operating

Capital Lease Leases
2006 $ 2,326 $ 1,468
2007 2,326 1,429
2008 2,326 1,270
2009 2,326 122
2010 2,326 44
Thereafter 22,785 3
Total minimum lease payments 34,415 $ 4,336
Less interest portion of payments (18,157)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 16,258
Current maturities of capital lease obligation 653
Capital lease obligation $ 15,603

Rental expense was $1,399, $1,386 and $1,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively.

12. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
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SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations", requires the Company to record a liability equal
to the fair value of the estimated cost to retire an asset. The asset retirement obligation ("ARO") is recorded as
a liability in the period in which the obligation is incurred or becomes determinable (as defined in the standard)
with a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. The ARO is accreted from
its current discounted value to its expected future settlement value, and the related capitalized cost is
depreciated over the useful life of the related long-lived asset. The ARO is based upon a number of
assumptions requiring professional judgment, including expected future settlement values and the credit-
adjusted risk free interest rate, and future adjustments of these assumptions may have a material impact on the
Company's results of operations. In March, 2005, the FASB issued, and the Company adopted effective in the
fourth quarter of 20035, FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligation”
(“FIN 477). The interpretation addresses diverse practices, which have developed with respect to the recognition
of asset retirement obligations when the timing and/or method of settlement of an obligation are conditional on
a future event. The interpretation requires recognition of a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset
retirement obligation if the liability can be reasonably estimated.

The Company has two ARO's related to the estimated costs associated with deconstructing the Company's
processing environments housed in leased facilities. The first ARO, in the amount of $1,500, was established in
December, 2004 concurrent with the impairment of the Company's former processing environment. The
Company did not begin the deconstruction and refurbishment of the facility related to this ARO in 2005. In
December, 2005, the Company performed and completed an updated assessment of this ARO based on
currently available information and costs, which resulted in an increase of $420 in the expected costs to
deconstruct and refurbish this facility. Accordingly, the Company recorded a charge in cost of services in the
consolidated statement of operations in December, 2005 to increase the value of this ARO to $1,920. As of
December 31, 2005, a portion of this ARO of $726 is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
because the Company expects to perform a portion of the deconstructing and refurbishing of the processing
facility within the next year. The remaining portion of this ARO of $1,194 is included in long-term liabilities.
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The second ARO was established in August, 2005 concurrent with the sale and leaseback of the Company's
current processing facility. The initial value of the ARQO, which was recorded as a long-term liability, was
approximately $1,339. The related capitalized cost has been included in property, plant and equipment and will
be amortized over the initial term of the lease. In December, 2005, the Company performed and completed an
updated assessment of this ARO based on currently available information and costs. As a result of this updated
assessment, the Company recorded an additional value for this ARO of $846, which was reflected as an
increase in the ARQO included in long-term liabilities with a corresponding increase in the related capitalized
cost included in property, plant and equipment, which will be amortized over the remaining life of the lease.
The original value of the ARQO and this increment will be accreted to its estimated settlement value of

approximately $9,948 over the remaining lease term. Accretion expense recorded in 2005 related to this ARO
was $39. ‘

13. DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

At December 31, 2004, the Company had outstanding a Credit Facility which included a $5,000 line of credit, a
mortgage loan and an equipment term loan. On August 8, 2005, the Company entered into the sale and
leaseback transaction for the Company’s principal processing facility, which is more fully discussed in Note 8,
“Property, Plant and Equipment”. A portion of the proceeds from this transaction were utilized to repay the then
outstanding balance of the mortgage and equipment term loan. The line of credit had no amounts outstanding

on August 8, 2005. As a result of these actions, the Company cancelled the line of credit and terminated the
Credit Facility.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31,

2004
Domestic bank equipment term loan ¥ 8,987
Domestic revolving line of credit of $5,000 of which no
amounts were outstanding
Domestic building mortgage loan ‘ 3,750
: 12,737
Less current portion : (2,661)
$10,076
14. OTHER LIABILITIES
Other liabilities consist of the following at December 31:
2005 2004
Deferred gain on the sale of facility : $ 3,588 $
Asset retirement obligations 3,418
Amounts due under retirement/severance agreements 545
Deferred tax liability 604
Other ‘ 138 136
§ 7,689 $ 740
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15. INCOME TAXES

The income tax provision (benefit) for the year ended December 31 is summarized as follows:

2005 - 2004 2003
Current:
Federal 3 (362) $ (3,433) $ 4,005
Foreign (209) 254
State 68 308 644
(503) (2,871) 4,649
Deferred:
Federal (20) 287 1,690
Foreign 8 63
State 1,674 540
(12) 2,024 2,230
Income tax provision (benefit) $ (519) 3 (847) $ 6,879
2005 2004 2003
Income (loss) before income taxes:,
United States $(19,568) $ (7,065) $ 17,705
International (2,064) 935 41
$(21,632) $(6,130) $ 17,746
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The difference between the income tax provision (benefit) and the expected tax which would result from the use
of the federal statutory income tax rate is as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Computed tax at statutory Federal rate $ (7,355) $ (2,084) $ 6,034
Release of prior year tax liability (203)
State income taxes, net of Federal benefit (1,453) (480) 781
Foreign income taxes 192 173
Valuation allowance - Federal 6,597
Valuation allowance - State 1,498 1,788
Other 6 (41) 64
Income tax provision (benefit) $  (515) . $ (847 $ 6,879
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The components of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31 are as follows:

2005 2004
Deferred Tax Assets:.
' Net operating loss carry forwards:
Federal : $ 4,683 $
Foreign 2,157 1,464
State ‘ 3,279 1,565
Tax credits: ,
Federal : 20 37
State : 1,055 1,093
Inventory reserves B 1,518 1,754
Asset retirement obligation 1,842 665
Deferred gain on the sale of facility 1,595
Other : 1,973 1,597
18,122 8,175
Less valuation allowance (13,782) (4,173)
Deferred tax assets 4,340 4,002
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Depreciation 3,606 3,235
Other 734 858
Deferred tax liabilities o 4,340 4,093
- Net deferred tax asset (liability) o ‘ $ $ 1)

In 2005, the Company’s valuation allowance results principally from federal, state -and foreign losses, and
related net operating loss carryforwards for which the realization of future tax benefits is uncertain. The
Company’s international subsidiaries have generated cumulative operating losses. In 2004, the Company’s
valuation allowance results principally from domestic state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards for
which the realization of future tax benefits is uncertain.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards and federal research and
development credits of $13,772 and $20, respectively, which expire in 2025. At December 31, 2005, the
Company has state net operating loss carryforwards of $31,349. State net operating loss carryforwards, which
primarily offset New Jersey taxable income, expire in varying amounts beginning in 2010 through 2012, In
additiori, the Company has state research and development, manufacturing and other credits of $1,055,
primarily to offset New Jersey income taxes, which expire in varying amounts beginning in 2006 through 2012.
Foreign nét operating loss carryforwards aggregate $6,186 and expire in varying amounts beginning 2006
through 2010. The Company has provided valuation allowances for all -of these net operating loss
carryforwards and credits due to the uncertainty of realizing future tax benefits from these tax attributes.
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16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

54

Processing and Tissue Supply Agreements

The Company is the processor of allograft bone tissue for domestic and international clients and provides these
processing services pursuant to long-term service agreements. The Company’s agreements with its clients
generally provide for cross-indemnification against liability arising out of performance of the agreements.

The Company has two agreements with MTF. Under these two agreements, MTF currently provides a
substantial portion of the allograft bone tissue that the Company processes. The first agreement, which was
entered into in June, 2002, expires on December 31, 2008 (the “2002 Agreement”). The second agreement,
which was entered into in December, 2004, expires on December 31, 2006 (the “2004 Agreement”), and
provides for two additional one-year renewal terms if certain conditions contained in the agreement are met.

The 2002 Agreement provides for MTF to supply a maximum number of donors for processing into MTF
labeled traditional tissue and MTF labeled Grafton® DBM, which is distributed and invoiced to hospitals and
surgeons by MTF. The Company charges MTF a processing fee for its services in processing donors into MTF
labeled tissue grafts. Under the 2002 Agreement, the number of donors to be provided by MTF is subject to a
quarterly adjustment, either upward or downward but in no event in excess of the contractual maximum, as
determined based on an average yield target per donor for MTF labeled Grafton® DBM. Due to the continued
decline in the market demand for MTF labeled Grafton® DBM, MTF provided 54% of the contractual
maximum in 2005.

Under the 2002 Agreement, MTF also supplies the Company with a specific number of donors, which are
processed into Osteotech labeled Grafton® DBM, Graftech® Bio-implants and traditional tissues or into private
labe! tissue grafts. The Company reimburses MTF for services related to donor recovery and donor eligibility.
The tissue grafts processed from these donors are distributed by the Company, or in the case of private label
tissue grafts by Smith & Nephew. The Company will continue to receive donors under the 2002 Agreement
until the termination of the agreement in December, 2008. The Company processes these donors into tissue
grafts or will utilize these donors to augment unprocessed donor tissue inventory. The Company expects to
reimburse MTF a minimum of approximately $6,000, $6,000 and $5,500 in 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively,
for MTF’s donor recovery and donor eligibility services related to the donors the Company will receive from
MTF.

The 2004 Agreement provides for MTF to supply a maximum number of donors for processing into MTF
labeled traditional tissue and Osteotech labeled Grafton® DBM and Graftech® Bio-implants. The Company
charges MTF a processing fee for its services in processing these donors into MTF labeled traditional tissue and
the Company reimburses MTF for its services related to donor recovery and donor eligibility for the allograft
bone tissue that is utilized for Grafton® DBM and Graftech® Bio-implants. Under the 2004 Agreement, the
number of donors to be provided by MTF is subject to a quarterly adjustment, either upward or downward but
in no event in excess of the contractual maximum, as determined based on an average yield target per donor.
The 2004 Agreement will automatically renew for two additional one-year terms if the Company processes an
average of 25 donors per month for the first six months of the calendar year prior to expiration of the then
current term. In 2005, MTF provided 90% of the contractual maximum. The Company anticipates that it will
process a sufficient number of donors in the first six months of 2006 for the 2004 Agreement to automatically
renew for 2007.

On January 1, 1997, the Company entered into an exclusive ten-year processing agreement with ARC. In
October, 2002, the processing agreement was amended. In November 2004, the Company was informed that
MTF had agreed to acquire the assets of ARC’s allograft tissue banking operations. On December 22, 2004, the
Company entered into the 2004 Agreement with MTF, which was effective upon the closing of MTF’s
acquisition of ARC’s tissue banking operations. On January 14, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement
with ARC that terminated the existing processing agreement with ARC upon the closing of the MTF
acquisition. On January 25, 2003, the Company was notified that MTF completed its acquisition of the assets
of ARC’s tissue bank operations. The new processing agreement with MTF and termination agreement with
ARC both became effective on such date.
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Effective January 4, 2002, the Company entered into a five-year agreement with LifeNet. Under the terms of
the agreement, the Company will process allograft bone tissue provided by LifeNet into the Company’s broad
line of Graftech® Bio-implants. Effective January 1, 2003, the Company entered into a five-year agreement
with DePuy Orthopaedics, Inc. and DePuy Spine, Inc. (collectively, “DePuy”) and LifeNet. Under the terms of
the agreement, the Company will process a private label DBM to specifications determined by LifeNet, from
bone tissue supplied by LifeNet. DePuy and LifeNet will market and promote the private label DBM to
domestic surgeons performing trauma, joint revision and spinal procedures and LifeNet will ship and invoice
the product to end-users. ‘

The Company entered into a five-year agreement with Community Tissue Services, or CTS, in February, 2006.
Pursuant to the agreement, CTS will recover donors, evaluate donor eligibility and supply the Company with
cortical shafts from a minimum number of donors per month. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company
may request to receive allograft bone tissue in excess of the contractual minimum, which CTS may supply if
such additional tissue is available. The agreement will automatically renew for successive two-year terms
unless either party notifies the other party in writing six months prior to renewal. The Company expects to
reimburse CTS approximately $1.3 million annually for donor recovery and donor eligibility services related to
the cortical shafts the Company will receive under the agreement.

Retirement Agreements

In 2005, the Company entered into retirement agreements with Richard W. Bauer, the Company’s former Chief
Executive Officer, and Michael J. Jeffries, the Company’s former Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Secretary. Messrs. Bauer and Jeffries retired from the Company on December 31, 2005.

Pursuant to Mr. Bauer’s retirement agreement, Mr. Bauer is entitled to (i) payments equal to 24 months of his
gross base salary, (ii) a transition payment in the amount of $47 for the purpose of establishing an office and
arranging support so as to be in a position to assist the Company in the duties outlined in the Agreement, (iii)
compensation corresponding to all unused vacation pay accrued as of the date of his retirement, (iv) payment of
premiums for medical, dental and life insurance coverage, consistent with past practice, through the later of
December 31, 2007 and the date Mr. Bauer ceases serving on the Company's Board of Directors (the "Insurance
Termination Date"), and (v) payment of all COBRA premiums commencing on the Insurance Termination Date
through the earlier of (a) such time as Mr. Batuer is eligible to receive Medicare benefits and (b) eighteen
months after the Insurance Termination Date.

Pursuant to' Mr. Jeffries retirement agreement, Mr. Jeffries is entitled to (i) payments equal to 15 months of his
gross base salary, (il) compensation corresponding to all unused vacation pay accrued as of the date of
retirement, (iii) payment of premiums for medical, dental and life insurance coverage through March 31, 2607,
and (iv) payment of all COBRA premiums commencing April 1, 2007 through (a) the earlier of such time Mr.,
Jeffries is eligible to receive Medicare benefits or (b) eighteen months after April 1, 2007.

In addition, all outstanding stock options granted to Messrs. Bauer and Jeffries shall remain exercisable through
the original expiration dates of the option agreements pursuant to which they were granted, notwithstanding any
provisions: in such option agreements which would have limited the exercise period of such options following
the termination of their employment with the Company. In addition, Messrs. Bauer and Jeffries and the
Company mutually agreed to release each other from any claims or liabilities arising out of their employment or
retirement. Messrs. Bauer and Jeffries will also be subject to certain non-competition covenants through
December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2007, respectively.

The aggregate value of Messrs. Bauer and Jeffries retirement agreements is $924 and $415, respectively, and
has been included in marketing, selling and general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements
of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005. Payments under the retirement agreements will aggregate
$794 and $545 in 2006 and 2007, respectively.
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William D. Burge v. Springhill Hospitals, Inc., et al.

In January, 2005, the Company was served with a complaint in an action brought by plaintiff William D. Burge
in the Circuit Court for Mobile County, Alabama against several defendants, including the Company. The
complaint alleges that plaintiff suffered an infection from defective bone putty and/or donor bone graft used
during a cervical procedure performed on plaintiff. Plaintiff alleges personal injuries and damages in an
unspecified amount. The Company served an answer to the complaint on February 14, 2005. Discovery in this
action is in process.

The Company maintains a product liability insurance policy and notified the insurance company of this action.
The insurance company has agreed to defend the Company in this matter. The Company believes that the
claims made against it in this action are without merit and will continue to vigorously defend against such
claims. ’ :

Tissue Transplant Technology, Ltd. d/b/a Bone Bank Allografts v. Osteotech, Inc.

In December, 2004, the Company was served with a suit filed by Tissue Transplant Technology, Ltd. d/b/a
Bone Bank Allografts ("BBA"). In February, 2006, the Company and BBA amicably settled this action. There
was no impact to the Company’s financial condition or results of operations from this settlement.

Burel v. Osteotech, Inc. and Richard W. Bauer, Chief Executive Officer of Osteotech, Inc.

Marc Burel, a former executive officer, named the Company in an action pending in New Jersey Superior
Court. Among other things, Mr. Burel asserts several claims against the Company, including Mr. Bauer in his
capacity as Chief Executive Officer, for breach of contract and fraud, in connection with certain monies
allegedly owed to Mr. Burel pursuant to his employment agreement. Mr. Burel seeks an unspecified amount of
compensatory and punitive damages. The parties have agreed to attempt to mediate this action. Discovery is
pending. The Company believes that the claims made against it in this action are without merit and, if
necessary, will vigorously defend against such claim.

Other than the foregoing matters, the Company is not a party to any material pending legal proceeding.
Litigation is subject to many uncertainties and management is unable to predict the outcome of the pending
suits and claims. It is possible that the results of operations or liquidity and capital resources of the Company
could be adversely affected by the ultimate outcome of the pending litigation or as a result of the costs of
contesting such lawsuits. The Company is currently unable to estimate the ultimate liability, if any, that may
result from the pending litigation and, accordingly, no material provision for any liability (except for accrued
legal costs for services previously rendered) has been made for such pending litigation in the consolidated
financial statements.
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17. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock

The authorized capital of the Company includes 5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, the rights and provisions
of which will be determined by the Board of Directors at the time any such shares are issued, if at all. No
shares of Preferred Stock were issued or outstanding at any time during 2005, 2004 or 2003.

Stock Options

The Company’s 2000 Stock Plan (the “2000 Plan”), as amended pursuant to a shareholders’ vote at the
Company’s annual meeting in 2003, authorizes the grant of up to 2,250,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock in the form of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options or other stock-based awards to
employees, directors and consultants. Prior to the shareholder vote in June, 2003, the 2000 Plan authorized the
grant of up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock in the form of stock-based awards. Incentive stock options
may be granted at prices not less than 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Non-qualified stock
options and other stock-based awards may be granted at the discretion of the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors under terms and conditions as determined by the Compensation Committee. Options issued
pursuant to the 2000 Plan typically have terms requiring vesting ratable over four years, except for options
issued to non-employee directors for which the vesting period is one year, or such period to match the vesting
period or adjusted vesting period determined by the Company’s Compensation Committee or Board of
Directors. Options expire ten years from the date of grant.

The 1991 Stock Option Plan (the “1991 Plan”), as amended, authorized the grant of the Company’s common
stock in the form of incentive stock options or non-qualified stock options to employees and consultants. In
June, 2000, the 1991 Plan was replaced by the 2000 Plan, and therefore, options will no longer be issued under
the 1991 Plan.

The 1991 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan (the “Directors Plan), as amended, authorized the grant of
options to purchase the Company’s common stock to members of the Board of Directors who are not officers or
employees of the Company. In September 2001, the Directors Plan was replaced by the 2000 Plan, and
therefore, options will no longer be issued under the Directors Plan.

In 2004 and 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a number of actions which accelerated the
vesting of certain outstanding options, vested immediately the December, 2005 stock option grants and changed
the terms of certain stock options for retiring/resigning executive officers. See Note 2, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies — Stock Options” for a detailed discussion of these Board actions.

Stock option activity for the years 2005, 2004, and 2003 is as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
: Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2,889,987 $8.39 2,499,762 § 9.10 2,405,312 § 9.26
Granted 427,900 4.07 694,850 5.41 374,450 9.06
Exercised (47,575) 3.84 (22,875) 435 (80,437) 4.74
Cancelled or expired (333,250) 6.75 (281,750) 7.62 (199,563)  12.75
Outstanding at December 31, 2,937,062 $8.03 2,889,987 % 8.39 2,499,762 § 9.10
Exercisable at December 31, 2,752,062 $8.32 2,450,137 § 9.02 1,758,957 3 9.56
Available for grant at
December 31, ) 263,625 580,150 1,112,000
Weighted average fair value per share \
of options granted during the period $1.04 3 3.63 $ 7.67
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The following table summarizes the information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Number Average Weighted Number Weighted

Outstanding at ~ Remaining Average Exercisable at Average

December 31, Contractual Exercise December 31, Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices 2005 Life (Years) Price 2005 _ Price
$2.62 To $3.79 276,625 7.2 $3.40 131,625 $3.51
3.80 To 5.05 510,087 8.1 4.33 470,087 4.30
5.06 To 6.31 536,400 6.8 5.54 536,400 5.54
6.32 To 7.58 380,500 5.1 6.55 380,500 6.55
7.59 To 8.84 621,950 3.2 8.34 621,950 8.34
8.85 To 10.10 150,000 _ 5.7 8.90 150,000 8.90
10.11 To 11.36 60,000 5.2 10.97 60,000 10.97
11.37 To 15.15 113,000 5.5 12.96 113,000 12.96
15.16 To 22.73 243,500 2.9 18.92 243,500 18.92
22.74 To 37.88 45,000 3.4 37.88 45,000 37.88

$ 262 To $37.88 2,937,062 5.6 $8.03 2,752,062 §832

Stock Purchase Plan

The 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “1994 Purchase Plan”) provided for the issuance of up to 575,000
shares of Common Stock. Eligible employees may purchase shares of the Company’s Common Stock through
payroll deductions of 1% to 7%4% of annual compensation. The purchase price for the stock is 85% of the fair
market value of the stock on the last day of each calendar quarter. At December 31, 2005, 131,008 shares were
available for future offerings under this plan. The 1994 Purchase Plan expires on July 1, 2009.
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Stockholder Rights Agreement

In May, 2005, the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors approved the execution of an amended and
restated rights agreement (the “Amended and Restated Rights Agreement”), which amended and restated the
rights agreement, dated as of February 1,1996, between the Company and Registrar and Transfer Company, as
rights agent, as amended by Amendment No. 1 thereto dated March 25, 1999 (the “Original Rights
Agreement”). The Original Rights Agreement granted a dividend of one preferred stock purchase right (the
“Right”) for each outstanding share of common stock. The Amended and Restated Rights Agreement
eliminated the provisions in the Original Rights Agreement that limited the authority of the Board of Directors
to take action under certain circumstances, unless such actions were approved by the Continuing Directors, as
such term was defined in the Original Rights Agreement. Upon the occurrence of certain events, each Right
entitles the stockholder to purchase from the Company one one-hundredth of a preferred share at a price of
$170.00 per one one-hundredth of a preferred share, subject to adjustment. The Rights will not be exercisable
or separable from the common shares until ten business days after a person or group acquires or tenders for 20%
or more of the Company’s outstanding common shares (“triggering event”). The Amended and Restated Rights
Agreement also provides that, after a triggering .event occurs, the Rights convert into a Right to buy common
stock and entitle its holder to receive upon exercise that number of common shares having a market value of
two times the exercise price of the Right. In thé event the Company is acquired in a merger or other business
combination transaction, each Right will entitle its holder to receive upon exercise of the Right, at the Right’s
then current exercise price, that number of the acquiring company’s common shares having a market value of
two times the exercise price of the Right. The Company is entitled to redeem the Rights at a price of $.01 per
Right at any time prior to their becoming exercisable, and the Rights expire on March 31, 2009. The Amended
and Restated Rights Agreement was adopted to maximize the value of all stockholders’ ownership interest in
the Company by establishing a deterrent to abusive takeover tactics sometimes used in challenges for corporate
control.

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
2005 2004 2003
Cash paid (refunded) during the year for taxes $(2,791) $1,324 § (79
Cash paid during the year for interest ‘ $ 1,108 § 537 3 874
Noncash financing and investing activities:
Assets obtained by capital lease 3 $16,500
Asset retirement obligation ‘ $ 2,185

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss) : § (2L117) $ (5,283} $ 10,867
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding 17,195,868 17,146,127 17,059,495
Effect of dilutive securities — stock options 461,464
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share 17,195,868 17,146,127 17,520,959
Basic earnings (loss) per share F (123 ) (31 $ .64
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $  (1.23) $ (31 $ 62
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For 2005 and 2004, common equivalent shares, consisting solely of stock options, of 2,937,062 and 2,889,987,
respectively, are excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share as their effects are antidilutive.
Options to purchase 468,505 shares of common stock that were outstanding during 2003 were not included in
the computation of diluted earnings per share as the exercise prices of these options were greater than the
average market price of the common shares.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Company has two primary business segments: the DBM Segment and the Base Tissue Segment. The DBM
Segment engages in the processing and marketing of Grafton® and private label DBMs. The Base Tissue
Segment primarily engages in the processing of mineralized weight-bearing allograft bone tissue, including the
Company’s proprietary Graftech® Bio-Implant allograft bone tissue forms. The Company’s other business lines
engage in processing, marketing and distributing bovine tissue products and marketing and distributing metal
spinal implant products through June 30, 2004.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies. The Company evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on
revenue performance and operating results. The Company does not generate information about assets for its
operating segments, and accordingly no asset information is presented. All corporate related expenses are
allocated to operating segments and geographic areas in determining operating income (loss) of the respective
segments. These expenses are allocated to the segments and geographic areas based on allocations that the
Company considers to be a reasonable reflection of the utilization of services provided or the benefits received.

Summarized financial information concerning the Company’s segments is shown in the following table.

Base Tissue

DBM Segment Segment Other Consolidated

Revenues:

2005 $ 52,066 $ 39,835 § 1,406 $ 93,307

2004 45,790 39,330 3,457 88,577

2003 46,294 41,465 6,674 94,433
Operating income (loss): _

2005 3 (349) $ (20,055) $ 331 $ (20,068)

2004 4,383 (9,282) (1,731) (6,630)

2003 20,646 2,703 (5,217) 18,132
Depreciation and amortization:

2005 § 1,026 § 4,670 $ 26 § 5,722

2004 778 7,340 225 8,343

2003 2,206 5,104 1,188 8,498

In 2004, the Base Tissue Segment operating loss included the impairment charge of $5,853 related to the
processing environment in the Shrewsbury Facility as more fully described in Note 4, “Gains and Charges”.
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Financial information by geographic area is summarized as follows:

United States Europe Consolidated

Revenues

2005 379,957 § 13,350 § 93,307

2004 77,317 11,260 88,577

2003 86,070 8,363 94,433
Long-lived Assets ‘

2005 $ 38,940 $ 1,022 $ 39,962

2004 . 36,165 1,282 37,447

2003 . 45,911 1,196 47,107

In 20035, the Company has one customer, MTF, which accounted for $24,984, or 27%, of consolidated revenues.
In 2004 and 2003, MTF accounted for $18,270 and $23,424, or 21% and 25%, respectively, of consolidated
revenues. In 2004 and 2003, ARC accounted $18,365 and $23,037, or 21% and 24%, respectively, of

consolidated revenues. In January, 2005, MTF acquired the assets of the allograft tissue banking operation of
ARC. ‘

21, RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company has a 401(k) plan which covers substantially all full time U.S. employees. The Company
contributes an amount equal to 35% of each participant's contribution. A participant’s contribution may not
exceed 15% of annual compensation, or the maximum allowed by the Internal Revenue Code, if less than 15%
of compensation. Provisions of the plan include graduated vesting over five years from date of employment.
Total Company contributions for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $495, $378 and
$414, respectively.

The Company does not maintain any other pension or post retirement plans.
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22, QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:
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Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2005
Net revenues $ 23,848 $ 25,290 $ 22,245 $ 21,924
Gross profit 10,627 10,073 7,006 4,156
Net income (loss) (831) (1,878) . (6,797) (11,611)
Earnings Loss per share:

Basic (.05) (11 (.40) (.67)

Diluted (.05) (11) (.40) (.67)
2004
Net revenues $ 23,777 $ 22,225 $22,132 $20,443
Gross profit 9,638 9,957 10,298 6,182
Net income (loss) (1,255) (427) 1,022 (4,623)
Eamings (loss) per share:

Basic (.07 {.02) .06 (.27)

Diluted (.07) (.02) .06 (:27)

See Note 4, “Gains and Charges” for discussion of significant gains and charges recorded in 2005 and 2004.



REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRMS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Osteotech, Inc.
Eatontown, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Osteotech, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”)
as of December 31, 2005 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows
for the year then ended. We have also audited the schedule listed in the accompanying index. These financial
statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements and schedule are free of material misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and schedule, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements and schedule. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company at December 31, 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Also, in our opinion, the schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based
on criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Commiittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), our report dated March 24, 2006 expressed an unqualified
opinion on management's assessment of internal control over financial reporting, and an adverse opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting because of the existence of a material weakness.

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP
Woodbridge, New Jetsey
March 24, 2006

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Osteotéch, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2004,
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Osteotech, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31,
2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December
31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in
our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Florham Park, New Jersey
March 25, 2005
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Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. As defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed by, or supervised by, the company’s principal executive and principal financial
officers, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

QOur internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures, that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our
assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that
receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer,
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005
based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2005.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected.

In our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 2005, management
reported a material weakness with respect to the review of certain domestic financial information included in our
internal financial results for the month ended August 31, 2005. Specifically, sufficient review, investigation and
follow-up on underlying account analyses were not performed pursuant to established procedures. As a result of this
matter and to reduce the risk of recurrence, certain additional review procedures were instituted effective with the
preparation of the financial statements for the quarter ended September 30, 2005. Our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer concluded that such additional review procedures were effective as of September 30,
200s.

During the preparation of our fourth quarter and year-end financial statements, management identified
certain deficiencies in the internal controls over the financial closing and reporting processes of our domestic
financial group. As a result, management has identified the following material weakness:

Insufficient domestic and corporate personnel with appropriate accounting knowledge and training.

We lacked a sufficient complement of domestic and corporate personnel with an appropriate
level of accounting knowledge, experience and training in the application of generally accepted
accounting principles commensurate with our financial reporting requirements. This resulted in
deficiencies related to the controls over the preparation, review and approval of journal entries, account
analyses and reconciliations and adequate supervision of the financial closing and reporting processes.
These matters were further impacted by the resignation of a key corporate financial manager during the
year-end closing and reporting processes.
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Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial réponing as of
December 31, 2005 has been audited by BDO Seidman, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in their report, which is included herein.

We are currently finalizing our remediation plan to enhance our domestic and corporate accounting
departments to address the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting that existed as of
December 31, 2005. Our remedial action plan will include:

o asearch for senior level financial managers with an appropriate level of accounting knowledge, experience
and training in the application of generally accepted accounting principles commensurate with our financial
accounting and reporting requirements. Pending the retention of these new positions, our Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer assumed additional responsibilities. During the first quarter of 2006,
we retained an outside consultant to assist, under the supervision of our Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer, with the closing of our books and with the reportmg of our financial statements as of and
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005;

e improving training, education, accounting reviews, and if necessary, hiring additional accountmg and
financial personnel, to ensure that all relevant financial personnel have the approprlate level of technical
expertise to effectively interpret and apply accountmg standards; and

e improving training, education, and revising our policies and procedures to provide for an mcreased level of
management oversight.

-Management is committed to finalizing its remediation action plan and implementing the necessary
enhancements to its domestic and corporate accounting departments and its policies and procedures to fully
remediate the material weakness discussed above. We will continue to monitor the improvements in the internal
control over financial reporting to ensure remediation of the material weakness.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Osteotech, Inc.
Eatontown, New Jersey

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Osteotech, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company™) did not maintain effective
internal ‘control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, because of the effect of the material weakness
identified in management's assessment, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. ' -

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected. The following material weakness has been identified and included in management's assessment:

o Insufficient domestic and corporate personnel with appropriate accounting knowledge and training.

The Company lacked a sufficient complement of domestic and corporate personnel with an appropriate
level of accounting knowledge, experience and training in the application of generally accepted
accounting principles commensurate with the Company’s financial reporting requirements. This
resulted in deficiencies related to the controls over the preparation, review and approval of journal
entries, account analyses and reconciliations and adequate supervision of the financial closing and
reporting processes. These matters were further impacted by the resignation of a key corporate
financial manager during the year-end closing and reporting processes.
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This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our
audit of the 2005 financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 24, 2006 on those
financial statements.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 20085, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material
weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on management’s statements referring to the
Company’s corrective action plan.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheet of Osteotech, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ eqhity and cash flows for the year then ended and our report
dated March 24, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion..

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP
Woodbridge, New Jersey
March 24, 2006
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Selected Financial Data

(dollars in thousands except per share

data) .
Forthe Year ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 200!
Consolidated Results of Operations ’ ' :
Net revenues $ 93,307 $ 88,577 $ 94,433 $ 83,374 $ 75,715
Gross profit 31,862 - 36,075 52,362 37,103 42,735
Operating expenses 51,930 42,705 41,730 42,183 48,628
Income (charge) from .
litigation settlements 7,500 (1,785) ’
Qperating income (loss) (20,068) (6,630) 18,132 (6,865) (5,893)
Other income (expense), net ’ (1,564) 500 (386) 29’ 129
Income (loss) from continuing . :
_operations before income taxes (21,632) (6,130) 17,746 (6,836) (5,764)
Income (loss) from continuing
operations - QLI (5,283 10,867 (1,248) (3,817)

Income (loss) from continuing
operations per share

Basic (123) (31) 64 (.08) (28)
Diluted (1.23) (3D .62 (.08) (28) |
Dividends per share ‘ 0 0 0 0 ’ 0
Year End Financial Position i
Working capital ’ $ 44,909 $ 56,839 $ 56,384 $ 42,447 $ 24,778
Total assets 111,022 | 116,404 127,213 114,732 107,017
Long-term obligations, net of current ’ : .
portion 15,603 10,076 13,262 15,922 18,683
Stockholders’ equity 70,755 91,395 96,220 84,023 68,125

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, we recorded certain gains and charges that are detailed in Note 4 of the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.” In July, 2002, we completed the sale of the business and substantially all of the
assets, including the assumption of certain liabilities, of our operations located in Leiden, The Netherlands. The
consolidated statements of operations for 2002 and 2001 reflect this divestiture as a discontinued operation. In
2002, the Company recorded charges to cost of services and products in the amount of $6,588,000 related to
provisions for metal spinal implant and. tissue inventories and instrumentation due to excess, obsolescence and
rework and for the estimated cost related to the penalty -associated with an expected shortfall under a purchase
commitment, and to charges from litigation settlements in the amount of $1,785,000 representing the present value
of the settlement of certain patent litigation. In addition, the Company recorded a gain in other income related to the
sale of certain intellectual property of $950,000 and recognized an income tax benefit of $2,557,000 related to
releasing tax liabilities, which were no longer required. In 2001, we recorded charges of $2,942,000 related to cost
of services/products and $1,890,000 to marketing, selling, general and administration expenses, principally related
to equipment no longer utilized in the processing of allograft bone tissue, reserves for excess inventory and
instrumentation associated with metal spinal implant systems and severance costs associated with the departure of an
executive officer. ’
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i

i
Information contained in this Annucl Report contains “for-
ward-looking statements” which can be identified by the use
of forward-looking ferminology such as “believes”, “expects”,

“may”, “will”, “should”, or "anticipates” or the negafive there- |

of or variations thereon or comparable terminology, or by dis-

cussions of strategy. No assurance can be given that the |
future results covered by the forward-looking statements will

be achieved. Some of the matters set forth herein and in
Osteotech’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005, constitute cautionary statements identi-

fying important factors with respect to such forward-looking |

statements, including certain risks and uncertainties, that
could cause actual results to vary materially from the future
results indicated in such forward-looking stafements. Other
factors could also cause actual results to vary materially from the
future results indicated in such forward-looking statements.

Osteotech undertakes to provide to each stockholder, with- :
out charge upon the written request of such stockholder, a |

copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005, All such requests should be sent to
Investor Relations, ¢/o Osteotech inc., 51 James Way,
Eatontown, New Jersey 07724, or by e-mail request from our
website af www.osteotech.com/finrequest htm.
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